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The information in this preliminary prospectus supplement, which relates to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act of 1933,
as amended, is not complete and may be changed. This prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus do not constitute an offer to
sell these securities or a solicitation of an offer to buy these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted.

Filed Pursuant to Rule 424(b)(4)
Registration No. 333-176944

Subject to Completion
Preliminary Prospectus Supplement dated December 10, 2012
PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

(To prospectus dated June 7, 2012)

18,500,000 Shares

Common Stock

We are selling 18,500,000 shares of our common stock.

Our shares of common stock trade on the New York Stock Exchange ( NYSE ) under the symbol CORR. On December 7, 2012, the last sale price
of our shares as reported on the NYSE was $8.25 per share. Prior to December 3, 2012, our name was Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation
and our shares of common stock traded on the NYSE under the symbol TTO.

We intend to use the net proceeds from this offering to make a capital contribution to our newly formed acquisition subsidiary. That subsidiary
will utilize our contributed proceeds, along with proceeds of a concurrent co-investment and debt financing, to acquire a liquids gathering
system and certain associated real property rights located in the Pinedale Anticline in Wyoming from a subsidiary of Ultra Petroleum Corp. This
acquisition will be our largest acquisition of REIT-qualifying assets to date.

Investing in our common stock involves risks that are described in the _Risk Factors section beginning on page
S-11 of this prospectus supplement and on page 11 of the accompanying prospectus.
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Per Share Total
Public offering price $ $
Underwriting discount $ $
Proceeds, before expenses, to us $ $

The underwriters may also exercise their option to purchase up to an additional 2,775,000 shares from us, at the public offering price, less the
underwriting discount, for 30 days after the date of this prospectus supplement.

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or disapproved of these securities or
determined if this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus is truthful or complete. Any representation to the contrary is a
criminal offense.

The shares will be ready for delivery on or about December , 2012.

BofA Merrill Lynch KeyBanc Capital Markets

RBC Capital Markets Wells Fargo Securities Stifel Nicolaus Weisel

The date of this prospectus supplement is December , 2012.
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ABOUT THIS PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT

We are providing information to you about this offering of our common stock in two parts. The first part is this prospectus supplement, which
provides the specific details regarding this offering. The second part is the accompanying prospectus, which provides general information,
including information about our common stock and information that may not apply to this offering.

This prospectus supplement may add, update or change information contained in or incorporated by reference in the accompanying prospectus.
If the information in this prospectus supplement is inconsistent with any information contained in or incorporated by reference in the
accompanying prospectus, the information in this prospectus supplement will apply and will supersede the inconsistent information contained in
or incorporated by reference in the accompanying prospectus. See Incorporation of Certain Information by Reference on page S-49 of this
prospectus supplement.

You should rely only on the information contained in or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying
prospectus. We have not, and the underwriters have not, authorized any other person to provide you with any different or additional
information. If anyone provides you with different or additional information, you should not rely on it. We are not, and the
underwriters are not, making an offer to sell these securities in any jurisdiction where the offer or sale is not permitted. You should
assume that the information appearing in this prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by
reference herein and therein is accurate only as of the specified dates. Our business, financial condition, liquidity, results of operations
and prospects may have changed since those dates. We will advise investors of any material changes to the extent required by applicable
law.
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FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This prospectus supplement, the accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference herein and therein include
forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as amended ( Securities Act ), and Section 21E of
the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act ). Forward-looking statements are made pursuant to the safe harbor
provisions of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, as amended. All statements other than statements of historical fact should be
considered to be forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements can often be identified by the use of forward-looking terminology, such as expects, anticipates, intends, plans,
believes, seeks, estimates, may, will be and variations of these words and similar expressions. Any forward-looking statement speaks only a

the date on which it is made and is qualified in its entirety by reference to the factors discussed throughout this prospectus supplement, the

accompanying prospectus and the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus.

Although we believe that the expectations reflected in any forward-looking statements are based on reasonable assumptions, forward-looking
statements are not guarantees of future performance or results and we can give no assurance that these expectations will be achieved. It is
possible that the actual results may differ materially from those indicated by these forward-looking statements due to a variety of known and
unknown risks and uncertainties. Some of the factors that could cause actual results to differ include, without limitation:

general economic and business conditions and specifically conditions in the U.S. energy infrastructure sector;

interest rate fluctuations, costs and availability of capital and capital requirements;

costs and availability of real property assets;

inability to consummate acquisition opportunities, or if consummated, integrate them into our business;

competition from other companies;

changes in lease rates;

tenant bankruptcies;

changes in operating expenses;

changes in applicable laws, rules and regulations; and

the ability to obtain suitable equity and/or debt financing and the continued availability of financing in the amounts

and on the terms necessary to support our future refinancing requirements and business.
This list of risks and uncertainties, however, is only a summary and is not intended to be exhaustive. For a discussion of these and other
factors that could cause actual results to differ from those contemplated in the forward-looking statements, please see the Risk Factors
section of this prospectus supplement beginning on page S-11, the Risk Factors section of the accompanying prospectus beginning on
page 11 thereof and the Risk Factors section of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2011. We do not
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undertake any responsibility to update any of these factors or to announce publicly any revisions to forward-looking statements,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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GLOSSARY OF DEFINED TERMS
Certain of the defined terms used in this prospectus supplement are set forth below.

Acquisition: the purchase by us of the LGS and certain associated real property rights from a subsidiary of Ultra Petroleum and subsequent
lease of the LGS to a different Ultra Petroleum subsidiary

AFFO: Adjusted Funds from Operations

BLM: U.S. Bureau of Land Management

CAD: Cash Available for Distribution

CorEnergy: CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc.

Corridor: Corridor InfraTrust Management, LLC

DD&A: Depreciation, depletion and amortization:

EEI: Edison Electric Institute

EIA: Energy Information Administration

EIP: Eastern Interconnect Project

Exchange Act: Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended

FERC: Federal Energy Regulatory Commission

FFO: Funds from Operations

Guaranty: the guaranty by Ultra Petroleum and Ultra Resources of Ultra Newco s obligations under the Lease Agreement
KeyBank: KeyBank National Association

INGAA: Interstate Natural Gas Association of America Foundation

Lease Agreement: the lease agreement with Ultra Newco relating to the lease of the LGS
Liquids Gathering System or LGS: a system of pipelines and central gathering facilities
Mcfe: 1,000 cubic feet equivalent

MLP: master limited partnership

NERC: North America Electric Reliability Corporation

NYSE: New York Stock Exchange

Pinedale LP: Pinedale Corridor, LP

Pinedale GP: the general partner of Pinedale LP
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PNM: Public Service Company of New Mexico

Prudential: Prudential Financial, Inc.

QDI: Qualified Dividend Income

ROD: record of decision

REIT: real estate investment trust

Securities Act: Securities Act of 1933, as amended

TCA: Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C.

Tcfe: Trillion cubic feet equivalent

Ultra Newco: Ultra Wyoming LGS, LLC, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Ultra Petroleum
Ultra Petroleum: Ultra Petroleum Corp.

Ultra Resources: Ultra Resources, Inc., an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Ultra Petroleum

S-iii
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PROSPECTUS SUPPLEMENT SUMMARY

This summary contains basic information about us and the offering but does not contain all of the information that is important to your
investment decision. You should read this summary together with the more detailed information contained elsewhere in this prospectus
supplement and the accompanying prospectus, and the documents incorporated herein and therein by reference, especially the information set
forth in the Risk Factors section of this prospectus supplement beginning on page S-11 and the Risk Factors section of the accompanying
prospectus beginning on page 11 thereof, as well as other information contained in our publicly available filings with the Securities and
Exchange Commission ( SEC ). When used in this prospectus supplement, the terms we, us, our and CorEnergy referto CorEnergy
Infrastructure Trust, Inc. and its subsidiaries unless specified otherwise.

The Company

We seek to acquire midstream and downstream U.S. energy infrastructure assets and concurrently enter into long-term triple net leases with
energy companies. Targeted assets may include pipelines, storage tanks, transmission lines and gathering systems, among others. These
sale-leaseback transactions provide the lessee company with a source of capital that is an alternative to other capital sources such as corporate
borrowing, mortgaging real property or equity offerings. We expect our leases to include provisions that enable us to participate in the revenue
and/or value of the underlying infrastructure real property asset. We intend to acquire infrastructure assets that qualify as real property for REIT
purposes. Our principal objective is to provide stockholders with an attractive risk-adjusted total return, with an emphasis on distributions and
distribution growth.

We are externally managed by Corridor InfraTrust Management, LL.C ( Corridor ), an affiliate of Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C. ( TCA ), a
registered investment adviser with over $9.4 billion of assets under management in the U.S. energy infrastructure sector and 48 employees as of
November 30, 2012. Corridor is a real property asset manager with a focus on U.S. energy infrastructure real assets and will have access to
certain resources of TCA while acting as our manager. We historically operated as a business development company under the name Tortoise
Capital Resources Corporation and invested primarily in securities of privately held and micro-cap public companies operating in the U.S.

energy sector. In April 2011, in connection with our strategic decision to become a REIT and focus on the acquisition of real property assets in
the energy infrastructure sector, our stockholders authorized withdrawal of our election to be treated as a business development company. We do
not plan on making additional investments in securities (other than short-term, highly liquid investments to be held pending acquisition of real
property assets) and intend to liquidate our existing securities portfolio in an orderly manner.

As of August 31, 2012 , the fair value of our securities portfolio (excluding short-term investments) totaled $76.9 million. The fair value of the
securities remaining in our portfolio as of August 31, 2012 includes: (i) publicly-traded and liquid master limited partnership ( MLP ) equity
securities of approximately $57.3 million and (ii) approximately $19.5 million of illiquid securities issued by two privately-held companies. The
publicly traded securities can be liquidated more readily than the securities of the privately-held companies.

S-1
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Acquisition of Liquids Gathering System from Ultra Petroleum
Background

On December 7, 2012, our newly-formed subsidiary, Pinedale Corridor, LP ( Pinedale LP ), entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement with an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Ultra Petroleum Corp. (NYSE: UPL) ( Ultra Petroleum ). The Purchase and Sale Agreement provides for
Pinedale LP s acquisition of a system of pipelines and central gathering facilities (the Liquids Gathering System or LGS ) and certain associated
real property rights in the Pinedale Anticline in Wyoming (the Acquisition ) for $225 million in cash.

Pinedale LP intends to enter into a customized long-term triple net Lease Agreement relating to the use of the LGS (the Lease Agreement ) with
Ultra Wyoming LGS, LLC, another indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Ultra Petroleum ( Ultra Newco ). Ultra Newco will utilize the LGS as a
method for separating water, condensate and associated flash gas from a unified stream which consists primarily of water and is a by-product of
natural gas extraction. Ultra Newco s obligations under the Lease Agreement will be guaranteed by Ultra Petroleum and Ultra Petroleum s
operating subsidiary, Ultra Resources, Inc. ( Ultra Resources ), pursuant to the terms of a Parent Guaranty (the Guaranty ). Annual rent for the
initial term under the Lease Agreement will be a minimum of $20 million (as adjusted annually for changes based on the consumer price index)
and a maximum of $27.5 million, with the exact rental amount being determined depending on changes in the product volume handled by the
LGS and subject to Pinedale LP not being in default under the Lease Agreement.

Upon completion of this offering, consummation of the Acquisition and effectiveness of the Lease Agreement, the LGS will account for
approximately 65% of our total assets on a pro forma basis as of August 31, 2012 and the lease payments under the Lease Agreement will
account for approximately 66% of our total revenue on a pro forma basis for the nine months ended August 31, 2012. The financial condition of
Ultra Newco, Ultra Petroleum and Ultra Resources and the ability and willingness of each to satisfy its obligations under the Lease Agreement
and Guaranty will have a major impact on our results of operation, ability to service our indebtedness and ability to make distributions. As such,
we have included the most recent consolidated financial statements of Ultra Petroleum beginning on page F-1 of this prospectus supplement.

The Liquids Gathering System acquisition will be our largest acquisition of REIT-qualifying assets to date and will serve as a cornerstone asset
for our energy infrastructure real asset strategy.

Acquisition Rationale

We believe that the key characteristics of the LGS align with our targeted strategy and investment criteria. Those investment criteria and
corresponding LGS key characteristics include:

Fixed Asset-Intensive Investments. We target investments in assets owned by companies with a significant base of fixed assets
that characteristically display relatively inelastic demand resulting in low volatility and low cyclicality. The LGS is a stable, low
volatility asset that is vital to Ultra Petroleum s operations.

Long-life Assets with Stable Cash Flows and Limited Commodity Price Sensitivity. We seek real property assets having the
potential to generate stable cash flows over long periods of time. The LGS is subject to a long-term lease with a strong
counterparty and subject to large fixed payments with limited commodity risk. The Pinedale field where the LGS is located had
an estimated reserve life of over 30 years as of December 31, 2011.

Growth Opportunities. We generally seek to enter into leases that provide base rent and participating rent over the term of the
lease. The Pinedale field is a long-life field with significant
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growth potential. Less than 25% of the Pinedale field had been developed as of December 31, 2011 and Ultra Petroleum is
focused on continued production and expansion in the field. Lease escalators and the variable component of the Lease
Agreement provide us participation in growth opportunities.

Experienced Management Team and High Quality Tenant. We target assets operated by management teams that have a track
record of success and that often have substantial knowledge and focus in particular segments of the energy infrastructure sector
or with certain types of assets. Ultra Petroleum is recognized as a top operator with strong operating and financial metrics and
has a management team with an average of over 30 years of experience.

Limited Technological Risk. We generally do not target acquisition opportunities involving the application of new technologies
or significant geological, drilling or development risk. The LGS has limited technological risk given the simple and efficient
nature of the system.

Impact of Acquisition on REIT Status

We anticipate that completion of the Acquisition, when combined with the expected contribution of certain of our assets to a taxable REIT
subsidiary, the acquisition of other assets and the receipt of other income, will allow us to meet the income and assets tests necessary for us to
qualify and elect to be taxed as a REIT for 2013. Because certain of our assets may not produce REIT-qualifying income or be treated as
interests in real property, we intend to contribute those assets into taxable REIT subsidiaries prior to 2013 in order to limit the potential offset
that such assets and income would have on our ability to qualify as a REIT for 2013.

Upon the completion of the Acquisition, the effectiveness of the Lease Agreement and consummation of the contribution transactions, and based
on the value of our existing assets as of August 31, 2012, we expect that our pro forma income for the nine month period ended August 31, 2012
would satisfy the REIT income tests and approximately 65% of our pro forma assets as of August 31, 2012 will qualify under the REIT
requirements. To the extent we are unable to consummate sufficient other acquisitions of REIT-qualifying assets by the end of the first calendar
quarter of 2013, we intend to liquidate a portion of our securities portfolio to allow us to meet both the asset and income tests necessary to
qualify for REIT status for 2013.

Co-Investment and Concurrent Debt Financing

The aggregate purchase price of the LGS is $225.0 million, payable in cash. We intend to use a portion of the net proceeds from this offering to
make a capital contribution to Pinedale LP, which will utilize our contributed proceeds, along with proceeds of the concurrent co-investment and
debt financing described below, to pay the aggregate purchase price of the LGS.

Co-Investment

On December 7, 2012, we entered into a Subscription Agreement with Ross Avenue Investments, LLC ( Ross ), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Prudential Financial, Inc. (collectively with Ross, Prudential ), in which Prudential agreed to fund a portion of the Acquisition by investing $30
million in cash in Pinedale LP concurrent with, and conditioned on the consummation of, this offering, the debt financing, and the Acquisition.
Prudential will then hold a limited partner interest in Pinedale LP, and we will hold a general partner interest. Prudential will hold approximately
18% of the economic interest in Pinedale LP and we, through Pinedale GP, Inc., the general partner of Pinedale LP and our wholly-owned
subsidiary ( Pinedale GP ), will hold approximately 82% of the economic interest. Pinedale GP has been given broad discretion to manage and
make decisions relating to Pinedale LP. Prudential has certain approval rights concerning the Lease Agreement and any financings undertaken

by Pinedale LP.

S-3
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Ross is managed by Prudential Capital Group ( PCG ), a private investment management business of Prudential Investment Management, an SEC
registered Investment Adviser. PCG manages one of the world s largest portfolios of traditional private placements with $64.8 billion in assets
under management as of September 30, 2012. PCG s Energy Finance Group, located in Dallas, Texas, provides capital to entities across the
energy value chain, including oil and gas exploration and production companies, energy services companies, midstream energy infrastructure
companies and utilities. Typical investment structures include investment grade and below investment grade debt, mezzanine debt and equity.

Debt Financing

On December 7, 2012, Pinedale LP entered into a $65 million secured term credit facility with KeyBank National Association ( KeyBank )
serving as a lender and the administrative agent on behalf of other lenders participating in the credit facility. Funding of the credit facility is
conditioned on our contribution of the proceeds of this offering to Pinedale LP and the receipt by Pinedale LP of the co-investment funds from
Prudential. Outstanding balances under the credit facility will generally accrue interest at a variable annual rate equal to LIBOR plus 3.25%. The
credit facility will remain in effect through December 2015, with an option to extend through December 2016. The credit facility will be secured
by the LGS. See Credit Facility.

S-4
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Pro Forma Structure Post-Acquisition, Co-Investment and Debt Financing

A chart showing the proposed pro forma structure following the Acquisition, co-investment and debt financing is set forth below. For additional
information on the Acquisition and the Lease Agreement see The Acquisition and The Lease Agreement beginning on pages S-18 and S-21 of
this prospectus supplement, respectively.

1. Prudential Financial, Inc. will be investing through an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary.

2. We will be investing through a wholly-owned subsidiary and will be providing guarantees to KeyBank on limited matters and to Ultra Newco as described
below.
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Our Competitive Advantages

We believe that we are well-positioned to meet the capital needs of companies within the U.S. energy infrastructure sector for the following
reasons:

Attractive Partner for Energy Infrastructure Companies. We believe that we are a desirable partner for energy infrastructure
companies because we have specialized knowledge of the economic, regulatory, and stakeholder considerations faced by them.
We are an attractive capital provider because we do not intend to compete with the operations of our lessees and are willing to
enter into long-term lease and capital arrangements that suit the requirements and achieve the goals of energy infrastructure
companies.

Broad Energy Infrastructure Scope. The universe of assets that may be owned by a REIT has expanded significantly. The
Internal Revenue Service has, through a series of private letter rulings, recently approved new types of assets in the energy sector
as being eligible to be owned by a REIT, including electric transmission and distribution systems, pipeline systems, and storage
and terminaling systems. While only the requesting party may rely on these rulings, they give insight into the potential for REIT
qualifying assets. We also intend to acquire assets that do not generate qualifying income for MLPs, such as renewables and
electric power transmission.

Efficient Capital Provider. If we are able to qualify as a REIT, our stockholders will generally not receive Unrelated Business
Taxable Income or Effectively Connected Income. This offers us access to investors desiring the risk-adjusted return profile that
we intend to provide but who are unable to invest directly in companies owning infrastructure assets, such as private equity
funds or MLPs. As a REIT, we will seek to have a lower overall cost of capital compared to certain other energy infrastructure
acquirors, which should enhance our future cash flows and provide for increased value-enhancing growth opportunities.

Disciplined Investment Philosophy. Our investment approach emphasizes overall asset operational and financial performance
with the potential for enhanced returns through incremental asset growth, capital appreciation, and minimization of downside
risk. Our process for selecting investments involves an assessment of the overall attractiveness of the specific subsector of the
energy infrastructure sector in which a prospective tenant company is involved; such company s specific competitive position
within that subsector; operational asset engineering due diligence; potential commodity price impact, supply and demand and
regulatory concerns; the stability and potential growth of the prospective real property asset s cash flows; the prospective
operating company s management track record; and our ability to structure an attractive investment.

Experienced Management Team. The principals of Corridor have an average of over 26 years of experience in energy operations
of multi-national electric and gas utilities and other national energy marketing and trading businesses and in optimizing
portfolios for real property energy asset investments. Based on their real property asset operational experience and strong
industry relationships, we believe that the principals of Corridor provide the expertise and knowledge necessary to acquire real
property assets with strong performance standards.

Extensive Relationships. The principals of Corridor maintain relationships with various owners and operators of real property
assets in the energy infrastructure sector. They regularly communicate with these owners and operators to discuss their real
property assets and the potential for structuring financing transactions that would be both beneficial to them and to us.

Manager s Affiliation with Tortoise Capital Advisors, LLC. Our manager, Corridor, is an affiliate of TCA, a registered
investment adviser with over $9.4 billion of assets under management in the U.S. energy infrastructure sector as of November
30, 2012. Corridor has access to certain resources of TCA while acting as our manager.

Table of Contents 14



Table of Contents

Edgar Filing: CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc. - Form 424B4

S-6

15



Edgar Filing: CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc. - Form 424B4

Table of Conten
Market Opportunity

We believe the environment for acquiring energy infrastructure real property assets is attractive for the following reasons:

Energy infrastructure provides essential services, and the demand for energy resources is expected to grow in the future. We
believe energy infrastructure is the backbone of the U.S. economy. The energy infrastructure sector includes the pipes, wires and
storage facilities that connect and deliver some of our most critical resources: electricity, oil and natural gas.
The demand for energy resources is correlated with population growth and has a low correlation to market cycles. U.S. energy consumption is
forecasted to grow by 11% from 2010 to 2035 according to the U.S. Energy Information Administration s ( EIA ) Annual Energy Outlook (April
2012). Demand for natural gas continues to increase as power generation companies switch to lower-cost, cleaner burning fuels such as natural
gas. Natural gas is the cleanest fossil fuel, with fewer carbon dioxide emissions than coal and oil. Natural gas is viewed as a reliable back-up
energy source to alternative energy (e.g., wind and solar) as it is not dependent on weather patterns.

The U.S. is the third largest producer of crude oil and the second largest producer of natural gas products in the world. The United States has an
abundant supply of natural gas with enough natural gas to last for approximately 150 years, according to the Interstate Natural Gas Association
of America Foundation ( INGAA ). Natural gas provides a means of energy independence; in recent years, 80 to 90 percent of the natural gas
consumed in the United States was produced domestically.

Investment is needed in U.S. energy infrastructure. Due to renewable energy requirements, rapid technological advances in the
methods used to extract oil and natural gas and aging infrastructure, substantial amounts of capital are expected to be invested in
energy infrastructure. For entities under the jurisdiction of the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission ( FERC ), investments in
the power transmission sector in 2010 were quadruple the average investment level throughout the 1990s. According to Edison
Electric Institute ( EEI ) data, planned transmission investment by shareholder-owned utilities from 2012 through 2015 will total
$11.6 to $15.2 billion. A Brattle Group study, based on North America Electric Reliability Corporation ( NERC ) and EEI data,
projects transmission additions of 3,000 to 6,000 miles per year from 2010 through 2015. A 2012 study by INGAA noted that in
the U.S. lower 48 states alone $200 billion in midstream investments will be required to accommodate the development of
natural gas, oil and natural gas liquid resources from 2012 through 2035. We believe that the U.S. energy infrastructure sector s
high level of projected capital expenditures and continued acquisition and divestiture activity provide numerous attractive
acquisition opportunities.

There are a number of attractive operating companies with capital needs. We believe that the capital expansion plans of
operating companies in the midstream and downstream segments of the U.S. energy infrastructure sector provide us attractive
real property acquisition opportunities. The energy industry is characterized by assets with high barriers to entry, providing
confidence that over an extended lease term an asset is unlikely to lose market share to a newly constructed asset. In addition, we
can offer capital for assets that currently do not generate qualifying income for MLPs, such as renewables and electric power
transmission.

There are a large number of assets in the energy infrastructure sector that are able to be held by a REIT. In 2007, 2009 and
2010, the Internal Revenue Service ( IRS ) issued three separate private letter rulings that defined certain energy infrastructure
assets as real property assets for tax

S-7

Table of Contents 16



Edgar Filing: CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc. - Form 424B4

Table of Conten

purposes. The qualifying real property assets in the energy infrastructure sector are electric transmission and distribution
systems, pipeline systems and storage and terminaling systems. The private letter rulings treat such assets as qualifying real
property assets if the income from these assets is derived from rents on real property. While private letter rulings provide insight
into the current thinking of the IRS on tax issues, such rulings may only be relied upon by the taxpayer to whom they were
issued. We have not obtained any private letter rulings.

Other Recent Developments

Name Change and New York Stock Exchange Symbol Change

On December 3, 2012, we changed our name from Tortoise Capital Resources Corporation to CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc. and changed
our New York Stock Exchange symbol from TTO to CORR.

Address Change

Our address is 4200 W. 115th Street, Suite 210, Leawood, Kansas 66211, and our telephone number is §77-699-CORR (2677). Information
about us is also on our website at www.corridortrust.com. Information on our website is not incorporated herein by reference.

S-8
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Shares of common stock offered by CorEnergy
Infrastructure Trust, Inc.

THE OFFERING

18,500,000 shares.

Shares of common stock outstanding after the offering 27,684,463 shares.

Use of proceeds

Risk factors

New York Stock Exchange symbol

REIT status and transfer restrictions

Distributions

Table of Contents

We estimate that our net proceeds from this offering, after deducting underwriting
discounts and estimated offering expenses, will be approximately $ (or $ if
the underwriters exercise their option to purchase 2,775,000 additional shares from us).
We intend to use the net proceeds of this offering to make a capital contribution to
Pinedale LP and for general business purposes. Pinedale LP will utilize our contributed
proceeds, along with the proceeds of a concurrent co-investment and debt financing, to
fund the Acquisition. See Use of Proceeds and The Acquisition.

See the Risk Factors section of this prospectus supplement beginning on page S-11 and
the Risk Factors section of the accompanying prospectus beginning on page 11 thereof
for a discussion of factors you should carefully consider before deciding to invest in
shares of our common stock.

CORR

We anticipate that completion of the Acquisition, when combined with the expected
contribution of certain of our assets to a taxable REIT subsidiary, the acquisition of other
assets and the receipt of other income, will allow us to meet the income and assets tests
necessary for us to qualify for and elect to be taxed as a REIT for 2013. To the extent we
are unable to consummate sufficient other acquisitions of REIT-qualifying assets by the
end of the first calendar quarter of 2013, we intend to liquidate a portion of our securities
portfolio necessary to allow us to meet both the asset and income tests necessary to
qualify for REIT status for 2013. We anticipate that in connection with any election to be
treated as a REIT, we will change our fiscal year to a calendar year ending December 31.

At our most recent annual meeting, our stockholders voted to authorize an amendment to
our articles of incorporation, and our articles will be amended, to include various
restrictions on the ownership and transfer of our common stock if we qualify for and
decide to elect REIT status, including among others, a restriction that, subject to certain
exceptions, prohibits any person from owning more than 9.8% of the aggregate value of
our outstanding common stock or capital stock.

We intend to continue to make distributions on a quarterly basis to our stockholders out
of assets legally available for distribution. Our Board of Directors will determine the
amount of any distribution. A REIT is generally required to distribute during the taxable
year an
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amount equal to at least 90% of the REIT taxable income (determined under Internal
Revenue Code section 857(b)(2), without regard to the deduction for dividends paid). We
intend to adhere to this requirement in order to qualify as a REIT.

We intend to make a one-time special distribution to distribute our accumulated C
corporation earnings and profits, if any, prior to our election to be taxed as a REIT. See
Distribution Policy beginning on page S-22 of this prospectus supplement.

Our Board of Directors has indicated that it intends to approve an increase in our
quarterly distribution payable to stockholders from $0.11 per share to $0.125 per share
for the first full quarter following completion of the Acquisition. There is no assurance
that we will continue to make regular distributions at such increased level or at all. If we
change our fiscal year to a calendar year as anticipated, our next distribution will be for
the period beginning on December 1, 2012 and ending on March 31, 2013, with the
anticipated $0.125 per share quarterly distribution amount applicable to the period
beginning January 1, 2013. See Risk Factors.
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RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider the risks described below, in the Risk Factors section of the accompanying prospectus beginning on page 11
thereof and the Risk Factors section of our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2011, together with all other
information included or incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus, before you decide to invest
in shares of our common stock.

If we consummate the Acquisition and the Lease Agreement becomes effective, the majority of our infrastructure real property assets will be
leased to a single tenant.

Assuming the Acquisition is completed and the Lease Agreement becomes effective, the LGS will represent approximately 65% of our total
assets or a pro forma basis as of August 31, 2012 and the lease payments under the Lease Agreement with Ultra Newco will represent
approximately 66% of our total revenue on a pro forma basis as of August 31, 2012. Ultra Newco or Ultra Petroleum, one of the guarantors of
Ultra Newco s obligations under the Lease Agreement and Ultra Newco s ultimate parent company, may experience a downturn in its business,
which may weaken its financial condition and result in Ultra Newco s failure to make timely lease payments or give rise to another default under
the Lease Agreement or Ultra Petroleum s failure to meet its Guaranty obligations. In the event of a default by Ultra Newco or Ultra Petroleum,
we may experience delays in enforcing our rights as landlord and may incur substantial costs in protecting our investment. In addition, if Ultra
Newco fails to renew the Lease Agreement and we cannot find a new lessee at the same or better lease rates, the expiration of the Lease
Agreement in fifteen years could have a material adverse impact on our business and financial condition.

The following is a brief summary of certain risk factors disclosed by Ultra Petroleum in its most recent Annual Report on Form 10-K, which
should be carefully considered before you decide to invest in shares of our common stock. For a complete discussion of the risks that may be
applicable to Ultra Petroleum, please review its complete Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011.

Ultra Petroleum s reserve estimates may turn out to be incorrect if the assumptions upon which these estimates are based are
inaccurate. Any material inaccuracies in these reserve estimates or underlying assumptions will materially affect the quantities
and present value of Ultra Petroleum s reserves.

Competitive industry conditions may negatively affect Ultra Petroleum s ability to conduct operations.

Factors beyond Ultra Petroleum s control may affect its ability to effectively market production and may ultimately affect its
financial results.

A decrease in oil and natural gas prices may adversely affect Ultra Petroleum s results of operations and financial condition.

A substantial portion of Ultra Petroleum s reserves and production is natural gas. Prices for natural gas have been lower in recent
years than at various times in the past and may remain lower in the future. Sustained low prices for natural gas may adversely
affect Ultra Petroleum s operational and financial condition.

Compliance with environmental and other governmental regulations could be costly and could negatively impact Ultra
Petroleum s production.

Climate change legislation or regulations restricting emissions of greenhouse gases could result in increased operating costs and
reduced demand for the oil and natural gas that Ultra Petroleum produces.
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Ultra Petroleum may not be able to replace its reserves or generate cash flows if it is unable to raise capital. Ultra Petroleum will
be required to make substantial capital expenditures to develop existing reserves and to discover new oil and natural gas
reserves.

Ultra Petroleum s operations may be interrupted by severe weather or drilling restrictions.

Ultra Petroleum is exposed to operating hazards and uninsured risks that could adversely impact its results of operations and
cash flows.

If oil and natural gas prices decrease, Ultra Petroleum may be required to write down the carrying value of its oil and natural gas
properties.
We will be subject to risks associated with ownership of the Liquids Gathering System.

Our ownership of the LGS will subject us to all of the inherent hazards and risks normally incidental to the storage and distribution of natural
gas and natural gas liquids, such as well site blowouts, cratering and explosions, pipe and other equipment and system failures, uncontrolled
flows of natural gas or well fluids, fires, formations with abnormal pressures, pollution and environmental risks and natural disasters. These risks
could result in substantial losses due to personal injury and/or loss of life, significant damage to and destruction of property and equipment and
pollution or other environmental damage. Moreover, if one or more of these hazards occur, there can be no assurance that a response will be
adequate to limit or reduce damage. As a result of these risks, we may also sometimes be a defendant in legal proceedings and litigation arising
in the ordinary course of business. There can be no assurance that the insurance policies that we maintain to limit our liability for such losses
will be adequate to protect us from all material expenses related to potential future claims for personal injury and property damage or that such
levels of insurance will be available in the future at economical prices or to cover all risks.

We will be subject to the risk of Ultra Newco transferring its obligations under the Lease Agreement.

The terms of the Lease Agreement provide that Ultra Newco may transfer its rights and obligations under the Lease Agreement at any time,
subject to certain conditions. We thus bear the risk that Ultra Newco will transfer its rights and obligations under the Lease Agreement to a third
party whose creditworthiness may not be on par with that of Ultra Newco, which could inhibit such transferee s ability to make timely lease
payments under the Lease Agreement or increase the likelihood that a downturn in the business of such transferee could give rise to a default
under the Lease Agreement. The occurrence of either of these events could have a material adverse impact on our business and financial
condition.

Our operations could be adversely affected if third-party pipelines or other facilities interconnected to our facilities become partially or fully
unavailable.

The LGS connects to other pipelines or facilities owned by third parties. The continuing operation of such third-party pipelines or facilities is not
within our control. These pipelines and other facilities may become unavailable, or available only at a reduced capacity. If any of these
third-party pipelines or facilities becomes unable to transport the natural gas or natural gas liquids stored or distributed by the LGS, our business,
results of operations, financial condition and ability to make cash distributions to our stockholders could be adversely affected.

Although we believe that the Liquids Gathering System will constitute a real estate asset for tax purposes, that belief is not binding on the
Internal Revenue Service or any court and does not guarantee our qualification as a REIT.

In 2007, 2009 and 2010, the IRS issued three separate private letter rulings that defined certain energy infrastructure assets as real estate assets
for tax purposes. The potential qualifying real estate assets in the energy
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infrastructure sector are electric transmission and distribution systems, pipeline systems, and storage and terminaling systems. We believe that
the Liquids Gathering System constitutes a real estate asset for tax purposes consistent with these private letter rulings. Although private letter
rulings provide insight into the current thinking of the IRS on tax issues, such rulings may only be relied upon by the taxpayer to whom they
were issued and are not binding on the IRS with respect to us or the Liquids Gathering System. We have not obtained any private letter rulings
with respect to the Liquids Gathering System. If the Liquids Gathering System does not constitute a real estate asset for tax purposes, we would
likely fail to qualify as a REIT, would not achieve our objectives and the value of our stock could decline.

The Acquisition must be approved by the U.S. Bureau of Land Management. If such approval is not granted, the Acquisition may be
unwound and you will not receive any return of your investment.

We must submit the Acquisition to the U.S. Bureau of Land Management (the BLM ) for approval and may only do so following the closing of
the Acquisition. There is a risk that the BLM will not approve the Acquisition. As a result, we would not be viewed by the BLM as the holder of
rights in the BLM easements, which could adversely affect our ability to pledge the LGS as collateral for any future debt or sell our interest in

the LGS. In such an event, you will not receive any return of your investment, and we would use the proceeds of this offering on one or more
alternative acquisitions. We have not identified any alternative acquisitions at this time, and our decision with respect to any such alternative
acquisition would generally not be subject to stockholder approval. In addition, alternative acquisitions may not be readily available to us or may
yield lower returns than those expected to be received from the Acquisition. Pending the identification of alternative acquisitions, we may invest
the proceeds of this offering in short-term investments that would likely generate lower returns than those expected to be received from the
Acquisition, which in turn would cause our financial performance to suffer.

If we consummate the Acquisition, our indebtedness will be substantial and could have important consequences, including impairing our
ability to obtain additional financing or pay future distributions.

On a pro forma basis as of August 31, 2012, assuming the completion of this offering, the consummation of the Acquisition, our borrowing of
$65 million under our credit facility to fund a portion of the purchase price of the Acquisition and the co-investment by Prudential to fund a
portion of the purchase price of the Acquisition, we will have outstanding consolidated indebtedness of approximately $66 million. Our
substantial leverage could have important consequences. For example, it could:

result in the acceleration of a significant amount of debt for non-compliance with the terms of such debt or, if such debt contains
cross-default or cross-acceleration provisions, other debt;

result in the loss of assets due to foreclosure or sale on unfavorable terms, which could create taxable income without
accompanying cash proceeds;

materially impair our ability to borrow undrawn amounts under existing financing arrangements or to obtain additional financing
or refinancing on favorable terms or at all;

require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow to paying principal and interest on our indebtedness, thereby
reducing the cash flow available to fund our business, to pay distributions, including those necessary to maintain REIT
qualification, or to use for other purposes;

increase our vulnerability to economic downturns;

limit our ability to withstand competitive pressures; or

reduce our flexibility to respond to changing business and economic conditions.
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The terms of the co-investment in Pinedale LP may limit our ability to take certain actions in the future.

Pinedale GP, our wholly-owned subsidiary, is the general partner of Pinedale LP. Under the Pinedale LP partnership agreement, Pinedale GP is
given broad authority to manage the affairs of Pinedale LP and to ensure that Pinedale LP complies with the terms of various agreements to
which it is a party, including the Lease Agreement and the credit agreement with KeyBank. The Pinedale LP partnership agreement, however,
requires the approval of the holder of a majority of a class of limited partner interests (all of which will be held initially by Prudential) before
certain actions can be taken by Pinedale LP, including granting any consent under the Lease Agreement to: extend the term of the Lease
Agreement; change the methodology of determining the rent; improve the leased property; reduce the present value of rental payments; merge
with, or acquire unrelated assets from, a third party; incur debt, or amend the terms of any existing Pinedale LP debt, that would increase that
debt above a specified amount; or issue partnership interests with rights superior to those held initially by Prudential. The need for approval of
one or more of the foregoing matters may not be obtained at a time when we believe that an action requiring approval should be taken.

We may not be able to refinance the indebtedness that we incur to fund the Acquisition.

If we consummate the Acquisition and Pinedale LP borrows $65 million under its credit facility, such indebtedness will mature in 2015, or 2016
if the option to extend the date of maturity is exercised. Pinedale LP may not be able to refinance that indebtedness on its existing terms or at all.
If funding is not available when needed, or is available only on unfavorable terms, we may not be able to meet our obligations as they come due.
Moreover, without adequate funding, we may be unable to execute our growth strategies, complete future acquisitions, take advantage of other
business opportunities or respond to competitive pressures, any of which could have a material adverse effect on our revenues and results of
operations.

There are uncertainties relating to the estimate of our anticipated special distribution.

To qualify for taxation as a REIT, we will be required to distribute to our stockholders all of our pre-REIT accumulated earnings and profits, if
any, as measured for federal income tax purposes, prior to the end of our first taxable year as a REIT. Failure to make the special distribution
could result in our disqualification for taxation as a REIT. The determination of the timing and amount to be distributed in the special
distribution is a complex factual and legal determination. We may have less than complete information at the time we undertake our analysis or
may interpret the applicable law differently than the IRS. We currently believe and intend that our special distribution will satisfy the
requirements relating to the distribution of our pre-REIT accumulated earnings and profits. There are, however, substantial uncertainties relating
to the computation of our special distribution, including the possibility that the IRS could, in auditing tax years prior to our REIT election,
successfully assert that our taxable income should be increased, which could increase our pre-REIT accumulated earnings and profits. Thus, we
may fail to satisfy the requirement that we distribute all of our pre-REIT accumulated earnings and profits by the close of our first taxable year
as a REIT. Moreover, although there are procedures available to cure a failure to distribute all of our pre-REIT accumulated earnings and profits,
we cannot now determine whether we will be able to take advantage of them or the economic impact to us of doing so.

Failure to qualify as a REIT would have significant adverse consequences to us and the value of our common stock.

Although we anticipate that completion of the acquisition of the Liquids Gathering System, when combined with the expected contribution of
certain of our assets to a taxable REIT subsidiary, the acquisition of other assets and the receipt of other income, will allow us to meet the
income and asset tests necessary for us to qualify for and elect to be taxed as a REIT for fiscal 2013, we can not assure you that we will qualify
to elect to be taxed as a REIT. Furthermore, qualification as a REIT involves the application of highly technical and complex provisions of the
Internal Revenue Code as to which there may only be limited judicial and
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administrative interpretations and involves the determination of facts and circumstances not entirely within our control. Future legislation, new
regulations, administrative interpretations or court decisions may significantly change the tax laws or the application of the tax laws with respect
to qualification as a REIT for federal income tax purposes or the federal income tax consequences of such qualification. Accordingly, we cannot
assure you that we will be organized or will operate to qualify as a REIT for fiscal 2013 or thereafter. In addition, we have not obtained an
opinion of counsel that we have been organized in conformity with the requirements for qualification as a REIT or that our proposed method of
operation for fiscal 2013 and thereafter will enable us to satisfy the requirements for such qualification. If, with respect to any taxable year, we
fail to qualify as a REIT, we would not be allowed to deduct distributions to stockholders in computing our taxable income. After an initial
election and qualification as a REIT, if we later failed to so qualify and we were not entitled to relief under the relevant statutory provisions, we
would also be disqualified from treatment as a REIT for four subsequent taxable years. If we fail to qualify as a REIT, corporate-level income
tax, including any applicable alternative minimum tax, would apply to our taxable income at regular corporate rates. As a result, the amount
available for distribution to holders of equity securities would be reduced for the year or years involved, and we would no longer be required to
make distributions. In addition, our failure to qualify as a REIT could impair our ability to expand our business and raise capital, and it may
adversely affect the value of our common stock.

The ability of stockholders to control our policies and effect a change of control of our company will be limited by certain provisions of our
articles of incorporation and by Maryland law.

Our articles of incorporation authorize our board of directors to amend our charter to increase or decrease the aggregate number of authorized
shares of stock, to authorize us to issue additional shares of our common stock or preferred stock and to classify or reclassify unissued shares of
our common stock or preferred stock and thereafter to authorize us to issue such classified or reclassified shares of stock. We believe that these
articles of incorporation provisions will provide us with increased flexibility in structuring possible future financings and acquisitions and in
meeting other needs that might arise. The additional classes or series, as well as the additional authorized shares of common stock, will be
available for issuance without further action by our stockholders, unless such action is required by applicable law or the rules of any stock
exchange or automated quotation system on which our securities may be listed or traded. Although our board of directors does not currently
intend to do so, it could authorize us to issue a class or series of stock that could, depending upon the terms of the particular class or series,
delay, defer or prevent a transaction or a change of control of our company that might involve a premium price for holders of our common stock
or that our common stockholders otherwise believe to be in their best interests.

To maintain our qualification as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes, if we elect to be taxed as a REIT for fiscal 2013, starting in 2014
not more than 50% in value of our outstanding stock may be owned, directly or indirectly, by or for five or fewer individuals (as defined in the
Internal Revenue Code to include certain entities such as private foundations) at any time during the last half of any taxable year. To maintain
this qualification, and/or to address other concerns about concentrations of ownership of our stock, if we qualify for and decide to elect to be
taxed as a REIT, our stockholders have already approved an amendment to our articles of incorporation, and our articles will be amended, to
generally prohibit any individual (as defined under the Internal Revenue Code to include certain entities) from actually owning or being deemed
to own by virtue of the applicable constructive ownership provisions of the Internal Revenue Code, (i) more than 9.8% (in value or in number of
shares, whichever is more restrictive) of the issued and outstanding shares of our common stock or (ii) more than 9.8% in value of the aggregate
of the outstanding shares of all classes and series of our stock, in each case, excluding any shares of our stock not treated as outstanding for
federal income tax purposes. Subject to the exceptions described below, our articles of incorporation will further prohibit any person or entity
from actually or constructively owning shares in excess of these limits. We refer to these restrictions as the ownership limitation provisions.
These ownership limitation provisions may prevent or delay a change in control and, as a result, could adversely affect our stockholders ability
to realize a premium for their shares of common stock. However, upon request, our board of directors will waive the ownership limitation
provisions with respect to a particular stockholder and establish different ownership limitation provisions for such stockholder. In granting
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such waiver, our board of directors may also require the stockholder receiving such waiver to make certain representations, warranties and
covenants related to our ability to qualify as a REIT.

Complying with the REIT requirements may cause us to forgo otherwise attractive opportunities or liquidate certain of our investments.

To qualify as a REIT for U.S. federal income tax purposes, we must continually satisfy tests concerning, among other things, the sources of our
income, the nature and diversification of our assets, the amounts we distribute to our stockholders and the ownership of our stock. We may be
required to make distributions to our stockholders at disadvantageous times or when we do not have funds readily available for distribution.
Thus, compliance with the REIT requirements may hinder our ability to make certain otherwise attractive investments or undertake other
activities that might otherwise be beneficial to our company and our stockholders, or may require us to borrow or liquidate investments in
unfavorable market conditions. In addition, Corridor may be unable to find investments that comply with REIT requirements, thereby limiting
our ability to grow or even maintain our asset base.

In connection with such requirements if we elect to be taxed as a REIT, we must ensure that, at the end of each calendar quarter, at least 75% of
the value of our assets consists of cash, cash items, government securities and qualified real property assets. The remainder of our investments in
securities (other than cash, cash items, government securities, securities issued by a REIT taxable subsidiary or certain other qualified assets)
generally cannot include more than 10% of the outstanding voting securities of any one issuer or more than 10% of the total value of the
outstanding securities of any one issuer. In addition, in general, no more than 5% of the value of our total assets (other than cash, cash items,
government securities, certain other securities and qualified real property assets) can consist of the securities of any one issuer, and no more than
25% of the value of our total securities can be represented by securities of one or more of a certain class of issuers. After meeting these
requirements at the close of a calendar quarter, if we fail to comply with these requirements at the end of any subsequent calendar quarter, we
must correct the failure within 30 days after the end of the calendar quarter or qualify for certain statutory relief provisions to avoid losing our
REIT qualification. As a result, we may be required to liquidate from our portfolio otherwise attractive investments. These actions could have
the effect of reducing our income and amounts available for distribution to our stockholders.

The ability of our board of directors to revoke our REIT qualification without stockholder approval may cause adverse consequences to our
stockholders.

If we elect to be taxed as a REIT, our articles of incorporation will provide that our board of directors may revoke or otherwise terminate our
REIT election, without the approval of our stockholders, if it determines that it is no longer in our best interest to continue to qualify as a REIT.
If we cease to be a REIT, we will not be allowed a deduction for dividends paid to stockholders in computing our taxable income and will be
subject to U.S. federal income tax at regular corporate rates and state and local taxes, which may have adverse consequences on our total return
to our stockholders.
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USE OF PROCEEDS
We estimate that we will receive net proceeds from this offering of approximately $ after deducting the underwriting discount and our
estimated offering expenses, or $ if the underwriters exercise their option to purchase 2,775,000 additional shares from us. We intend to

use the net proceeds of this offering to make a capital contribution to Pinedale LP in exchange for an approximately 82% general partner interest
in Pinedale LP and for general business purposes. Pinedale LP will utilize our contributed proceeds, along with the proceeds of a concurrent
co-investment by Prudential and a debt financing, to fund the net purchase price of the Acquisition.
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THE ACQUISITION

Pinedale LP has entered into a Purchase and Sale Agreement with a wholly-owned subsidiary of Ultra Petroleum dated December 7, 2012,
relating to the acquisition for $225 million of the LGS. That agreement is described in more detail later in this section.

Ultra Petroleum was incorporated in 1979 and is an independent oil and gas company engaged in the development, production, operation,
exploration and acquisition of oil and natural gas properties. Ultra Petroleum leases approximately 93,000 gross (53,000 net) acres in and around
the Pinedale and Jonah natural gas fields of the Greater Green River Basin in southwest Wyoming. The most recently available EIA data, dated
2009, indicated that the Pinedale field was among the top five U.S. natural gas plays based on proved reserves. As of December 31, 2011, Ultra
Petroleum held an approximately 50% working interest in approximately 1,700 producing wells in these fields. The Pinedale and Jonah fields
have estimated natural gas reserves of over 48 Tcfe as of December 31, 2011.

As of December 31, 2011, Ultra Petroleum had an estimated 4.3 Tcfe of proved reserves and 10.2 Tcfe of proved, probable and possible
(3P) reserves in the Pinedale and Jonah fields. Ultra Petroleums s third-party reservoir engineering firm, Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc.,
has identified an inventory of over 5,000 economic, future drilling locations.

Most of Ultra Petroleum s exploration and development in the Pinedale field takes place on land under the jurisdiction of the BLM. The BLM has
the authority to approve or deny oil and gas leases or to impose environmental restrictions on leases where appropriate. The BLM issued the
Pinedale Record of Decision ( ROD ) in September 2008. Under the ROD, Ultra Petroleum gained year-round access to the Pinedale field for
drilling and completion activities in development areas, provided Ultra Petroleum conducts an environmental mitigation effort, which includes

the use of a liquids gathering system. This additional access resulted in increased drilling efficiencies and allowed for accelerated development

of the field.

The LGS was completed in 2010 and consists of more than 150 miles of underground gathering pipelines with 107 receipt points and four
above-ground central gathering facilities that are utilized by Ultra Petroleum as a method of separating water, condensate and associated flash
gas from a unified stream and subsequently selling or treating and disposing of the separated products. Prior to entering the LGS, the unified
stream goes through an initial separation process to separate the wellhead gas from the liquids stream. The wellhead gas is then transported off
the leased lands to market by a third-party midstream service provider. The remaining liquids, primarily water, are transported by the LGS to
one of its four central gathering facilities where they pass through a three-phase separator, which separates condensate, water and associated
natural gas. Condensate is a valuable commodity that is sold by Ultra Petroleum; water is transported to disposal wells or a treatment facility for
re-use; and natural gas is compressed, dehydrated and sold by Ultra Petroleum or otherwise used by Ultra Petroleum for fueling on-site
operational equipment. Ultra Petroleum s non-operating working interest partners in the Pinedale field where Ultra Petroleum s LGS is located
pay Ultra Petroleum a fee for the use of Ultra Petroleum s LGS. As of June 30, 2012, Ultra Petroleum held an approximately 70% average
working interest among the land it operates in the Pinedale field. To date, no major operational issues have been reported with respect to the
LGS.

The Liquids Gathering System has a current capacity of approximately 45,000 barrels per day and average throughput during the four quarters
ended September 30, 2012 of approximately 36,000 barrels per day. The underground pipelines constituting the majority of the LGS and certain
other components, such as the separators, have useful lives that extend beyond the initial term of the Lease Agreement. We believe that the LGS
is capable of being expanded at a relatively low incremental cost by, for example, adding additional separating equipment.
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The key characteristics of the LGS acquisition align with our targeted strategy and investment criteria. We believe that those key characteristics
are:

a stable, low volatility asset with relatively inelastic demand;

the existence of a long-term lease with a strong counterparty with low commodity risk;

growth opportunity through the variable lease structure;

an experienced management team with a strong track record; and

a simple and efficient system that is well understood and mandated by regulators with limited risk.
The Purchase and Sale Agreement defines the varying assets that are included within the LGS acquired, and contains representations and
warranties from both the seller and Pinedale LP related to the proposed acquisition. The obligation of each party to close the proposed
acquisition is subject to a number of conditions, including the receipt by Pinedale LP of funds sufficient to enable it to pay the purchase price.
Successful completion of this offering, completion of the co-investment by Prudential, and completion of the KeyBank debt financing will
provide the funds sufficient to pay the $225 million purchase price. In the event of a casualty loss of greater than $10 million at the LGS prior to
closing and a determination by the seller that the LGS cannot be repaired, restored or replaced prior to December 21, 2012, Pinedale LP has the
option to terminate the Purchase and Sale Agreement. In the event of a less significant casualty loss, the closing will occur and the seller will
undertake the necessary repairs or replacements after the closing without any abatement in the resulting rent under the Lease Agreement. The
Purchase and Sale Agreement has been included as an exhibit to our Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 10, 2012, and prospective
investors in this offering are encouraged to read it in its entirety, as the foregoing is merely a summary of certain of its provisions.

Pinedale LP intends to enter into a Lease Agreement with Ultra Newco relating to the lease of the LGS to Ultra Newco under a customized
long-term triple net lease. Ultra Newco s obligations under the Lease Agreement will be guaranteed by Ultra Petroleum and Ultra Resources
pursuant to the terms of a Parent Guaranty. The Lease Agreement provides for an initial term of at least 15 years and potential successive
renewal terms of 5 years or 75% of the then remaining useful life of the Liquids Gathering System. Annual rent for the initial term under the
Lease Agreement will be a minimum of $20 million (as adjusted annually for changes based on the consumer price index) and a maximum of
$27.5 million, with the exact rental amount being determined depending on changes in the product volume handled by the Liquids Gathering
System and subject to Pinedale LP not being in default under the Lease Agreement. A form of the Lease Agreement is attached as an exhibit to
the Purchase and Sale Agreement filed with the SEC, and prospective investors in this offering are encouraged to read it in its entirety, as the
foregoing is merely a summary of certain of its provisions.

According to Ultra Petroleum s public filings, its current operations in southwest Wyoming are focused on developing Ultra Petroleum s long-life
natural gas reserves in a tight gas sand trend located in the Greater Green River Basin with targets in the sands of the upper Cretaceous Lance

Pool in the Pinedale and Jonah fields. Ultra Petroleum derives its revenues principally from the sale of its natural gas and associated condensate
produced from wells operated by Ultra Petroleum and others in the Greater Green River Basin. In addition, Ultra Petroleum plans to continue its
assessment of increased density drilling to more efficiently recover the oil and natural gas resources present in the area.

For its natural gas production in Wyoming, Ultra Petroleum has entered into various gathering and processing agreements with several
midstream service providers that gather, compress and process natural gas owned or controlled by Ultra Petroleum from its producing wells in
the Pinedale and Jonah fields. Under these agreements, the midstream service providers have routinely expanded their facilities capacities in
southwest Wyoming to accommodate growing volumes from wells in which Ultra Petroleum owns an interest. Such
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expansions are continuing, and Ultra Petroleum believes that the capacity of the midstream infrastructure related to its production will continue
to be adequate to allow it to sell essentially all of its available natural gas production from Wyoming.

Ultra Petroleum is recognized as a low-cost operator in the industry in terms of both adding and producing oil and natural gas reserves. Ultra
Petroleum s all-in cash costs, defined as all-in costs excluding DD&A expenses, have consistently been lower than natural gas prices and for the
twelve month period ended September 30, 2012 were $1.43 per Mcfe.

Following the consummation of the Acquisition, effectiveness of the Lease Agreement and the contribution and financing transactions described
below, the LGS will account for approximately 65% of our total assets on a pro forma basis as of August 31, 2012 and the lease payments under
the Lease Agreement will account for approximately 66% of our total revenue on a pro forma basis for the nine months ended August 31, 2012.
The financial condition of Ultra Newco, Ultra Petroleum and Ultra Resources and the ability and willingness of each to satisfy its obligations
under the Lease Agreement and Guaranty will have a major impact on our results of operation, ability to service our indebtedness and ability to
make distributions. As such, we have included the most recent consolidated financial statements of Ultra Petroleum beginning on page F-1 of
this prospectus supplement.

We intend to form multiple subsidiaries that we anticipate electing to treat as taxable REIT subsidiaries. We anticipate contributing certain assets
to the taxable REIT subsidiaries, which we anticipate will neither be treated as real estate assets for purposes of the REIT asset test nor will they
be treated as realizing income that is eligible income for purposes of the REIT income tests. The assets that we anticipate contributing to the
taxable REIT subsidiaries include units in publicly trades MLPs, our wholly-owned subsidiary Mowood and other non-qualifying assets.
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THE LEASE AGREEMENT

The Lease Agreement will be signed at the closing of the Acquisition of the LGS. The Lease Agreement has a fifteen year initial term and may
be extended for additional five year terms at the sole discretion of Ultra Newco. During the initial fifteen year term, Pinedale LP will receive
fixed monthly rental payments of $1,666,667 (as adjusted annually for changes based on the consumer price index) and variable rent based on
the volume of liquid hydrocarbons and water that flowed through the LGS in a prior month. The minimum and maximum annual rental
payments under the Lease Agreement during the initial fifteen year term are $20 million (as adjusted annually for changes based on the
consumer price index) and $27.5 million, respectively, subject to Pinedale LP not being in default under the Lease Agreement. The rent will be
renegotiated for any extended term. The Lease Agreement provides that Ultra Newco will be responsible for, among other matters, maintaining
the LGS in good operating condition, repairing the LGS in the event of any casualty loss (except upon the occurrence of an event damaging
more than 50% of the LGS, in which case Ultra Newco may propose to repurchase the LGS at a mutually agreeable price rather than repair the
LGS), paying property and similar taxes resulting from Pinedale LP s ownership of the LGS, and causing the LGS to comply with all
environmental and other regulatory laws, rules and regulations. The Lease Agreement grants Ultra Newco substantially all authority to operate,
and imposes on them the responsibility for the operation of, the LGS. The Lease Agreement provides Pinedale LP no control over the operation,
maintenance, management or legal compliance of the LGS.

The Lease Agreement imposes numerous obligations on Pinedale LP, including maintaining its status as a special purpose entity that only
engages in the business of owning, financing and leasing the LGS, keeping confidential certain information provided to it by Ultra Newco,
keeping the LGS free of certain liens, observing certain limitations on the transfer and ownership of beneficial interests in, and control of,
Pinedale LP and maintaining the relationship between Pinedale LP and its lender.

The Lease Agreement also describes the following situations in which Pinedale LP must consider a proposal by Ultra Newco to repurchase the
LGS: if the LGS experiences a major casualty loss; if all or a significant portion of the LGS is condemned by a government authority; or if Ultra
Newco concludes that its continued lease of the LGS is burdensome to it. In each of these events, Ultra Newco has the right to propose a
purchase price to Pinedale LP, and Pinedale LP may accept or reject the proposal. If the parties do not reach agreement, the Lease Agreement
continues in effect and Pinedale LP continues to own the LGS. In addition, Ultra Newco has, under certain circumstances, a right of first refusal
during the initial term of the Lease Agreement and for two years thereafter to match any proposed transfer by Pinedale LP of its interest as lessor
under the Lease Agreement or interest in the LGS. The obligations of Pinedale LP under the Lease Agreement are guaranteed by CorEnergy.

The form of Lease Agreement is an exhibit to the Purchase and Sale Agreement included as an exhibit to our Form 8-K filed with the SEC on
December 10, 2012, and prospective investors in this offering are encouraged to read the Lease Agreement in its entirety, as the foregoing is
merely a summary of certain of its provisions.

CREDIT FACILITY

Pinedale LP has entered into a Term Credit Agreement with KeyBank and certain other lenders pursuant to which Pinedale LP expects to
borrow, subject to our contribution of the proceeds of this offering to Pindedale LP and the receipt by Pinedale LP of the co-investment funds
from Prudential, $65 million to finance a portion of its acquisition of the LGS. The loan is to be repaid in full on December 31, 2015, unless
Pinedale LP elects to exercise the right to extend the term to December 30, 2016. The loan will accrue interest at LIBOR plus 3.25% (which rate
would have been 3.462% on December 7, 2012). Pinedale LP is obligated to pay all accrued interest on the fifth business day of each month
beginning January 8, 2013 and will be further obligated to pay monthly,
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beginning March 7, 2014, 0.42% of the amount outstanding on the loan on March 1, 2014. The LGS and all cash and other assets of Pinedale LP
will be pledged as collateral for the loan. Our interest in Pinedale GP is also pledged as collateral. We have provided to KeyBank a guarantee
against certain inappropriate conduct by or on behalf of Pinedale LP or us.

The credit agreement with KeyBank also provides, among other matters, that Pinedale LP: (i) has the opportunity under certain circumstances to
request an increase in the aggregate loan amount up to $78 million to finance an expansion of the LGS; (ii) has the right to prepay all or a
portion of the loan in minimum amounts of $500,000; (iii) will deliver financial information to KeyBank on a regular basis; (iv) will not make
any distributions to partners if the loan has been accelerated after a default under the credit agreement; (v) will not permit any other liens to be
placed on the LGS or any other asset pledged as collateral to KeyBank; (vi) will maintain a net worth of at least $120,000,000; and (vii) will pay
certain fees and expenses to KeyBank at such time as funds are first advanced by KeyBank.

The credit agreement with KeyBank has been included as an exhibit to our Form 8-K filed with the SEC on December 10, 2012, and prospective
investors are encouraged to read the credit agreement its entirety, as the foregoing is merely a summary of certain of its provisions.

MARKET PRICE OF COMMON STOCK

As of December 5, 2012, we had approximately 9,190,667 shares of our common stock outstanding held by 29 record holders. Our common

stock trades on the NYSE under the symbol CORR . On December 7, 2012, the closing price of our common stock on the NYSE was $8.25. The
following table sets forth the high and low sales price per common share during each fiscal quarter of our current fiscal year and our prior two
fiscal years. Prior to December 3, 2012 our common stock traded on the NYSE under the symbol TTO .

Price Ranges

Period Ended: Low High
Fiscal 2013

December 1 to 7, 2012 $8.25 $8.70
Fiscal 2012

November 30, 2012 $8.14 $9.24
August 31,2012 8.50 9.39
May 31, 2012 8.00 9.31
February 29, 2012 7.29 9.15
Fiscal 2011

November 30, 2011 $6.94 $8.27
August 31, 2011 7.51 9.00
May 31, 2011 8.18 9.24
February 28, 2011 6.87 8.50

DISTRIBUTION POLICY

We intend to make distributions on a quarterly basis to our stockholders out of assets legally available for distribution. Our Board of Directors
will determine the amount of any distribution. A REIT is generally required to distribute during the taxable year an amount equal to at least 90%
of the REIT ordinary taxable income (determined under Internal Revenue Code section 857(b)(2), without regard to the deduction for dividends
paid). We intend to adhere to this requirement in order to qualify as a REIT.
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Our Board of Directors has indicated that it intends to approve an increase in our quarterly distribution payable to stockholders from $0.11 per
share to $0.125 per share for the first full quarter following completion of the Acquisition. There is no assurance that we will continue to make
regular distributions at such increased level or at all.

A REIT is not permitted to retain earnings and profits accumulated during years when the company or its predecessor was taxed as a regular C
corporation. For us to elect REIT status for a taxable year, we must distribute to our stockholders on or before the last day of that fiscal year, our
undistributed earnings and profits attributable to taxable periods ending prior to the first day of that taxable year, which we refer to as pre-REIT
accumulated earnings and profits. Therefore, for purposes of qualifying as a REIT, we plan to distribute these pre-REIT accumulated earnings
and profits, if any, by paying a one-time special cash distribution to stockholders. We will not make a special distribution, however, if we do not
have any pre-REIT accumulated earnings and profits.
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CAPITALIZATION

The following table sets forth our capitalization as of August 31, 2012:

on an actual basis;

on an as adjusted basis to give effect to the issuance of the 18,500,000 shares of common stock offered hereby, after deducting
approximately $ million for the underwriting discounts payable by us and estimated offering expenses of approximately
$2.6 million; and

on a pro forma as adjusted basis, assuming the Acquisition and the borrowing of $65 million under the secured credit facility
with KeyBank had occurred on August 31, 2012.

You should read this table in conjunction with Use of Proceeds, = Pro Forma Financial Information, our financial statements and notes thereto
incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement and the Ultra Petroleum financial statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere
in this prospectus supplement.

At August 31, 2012

Pro Forma
As
Actual As Adjusted Adjusted

(Amounts in thousands, except share data)
Cash and cash equivalents $ 11,783,529 $ $
Debt:
Long-term debt $ 910,863 $ 910,863 $ 65,910,863
Lease obligation 47,848 47,848 47,848
Total debt 958,711 958,711 65,958,711
Stockholders equity
Warrants, no par value; 945,594 issued and outstanding 1,370,700 1,370,700 1,370,700
Capital stock, non-convertible, $0.001 par value; 9,184,463, 27,684,463 and 27,684,463
shares issued and outstanding actual, as adjusted and pro forma as adjusted, respectively 9,185 27,685 27,685
Additional paid-in capital 92,719,962
Accumulated retained earnings 6,076,007
Total stockholders equity 100,175,854
Total capitalization $ 101,134,565 $ $
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PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information gives effect to the Acquisition, the Lease Agreement, our
borrowing $65 million under the secured credit facility with KeyBank, the issuance by us of common stock and the use of net proceeds from this
offering as described in Use of Proceeds and the co-investment by Prudential. The preliminary allocation of the purchase price used in the
unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information is based on management s preliminary valuation. The estimates and
assumptions are subject to change upon the finalization of valuations, which are contingent upon final appraisals of plant and equipment,
identifiable intangible assets and adjustments to other accounts. Revisions to the preliminary purchase price allocation could result in significant
deviations from the accompanying pro forma financial information.

The pro forma condensed consolidated statements of income reflect the Acquisition as if it had occurred on December 1, 2010. The historical
results of operations included in the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statements of income for the fiscal year ended November 30,
2011 were derived from the audited financial statements of CorEnergy incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement. The historical
results of operations included in the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated statements of income for the nine months ended August 31,
2012 were derived from the unaudited financial statements of CorEnergy incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement.

The pro forma consolidated balance sheet reflects the Acquisition as if it had occurred on August 31, 2012. The historical balance sheet of
CorEnergy included in the unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated balance sheet was derived from the unaudited financial statements of
CorEnergy incorporated by reference into this prospectus supplement.

This unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information has been prepared by management for illustrative purposes only. The
unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information is not intended to represent or be indicative of the financial position or results
of operations in future periods or the results that actually would have been realized had CorEnergy made the Acquisition during the specified
periods. The unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial information, including the notes thereto, is qualified in its entirety by
reference to, and should be read in conjunction with, the historical financial statements and notes thereto incorporated by reference into this
prospectus supplement.
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CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc.

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

Assets

Trading securities, at fair value

Other equity securities, at fair value

Leased property, net of accumulated depreciation of $824,066
Cash and cash equivalents

Property and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation of $1,610,766
Intangible lease asset, net of accumulated amortization of $267,611
Prepaid expenses

Other assets

Deferred leasing costs
Deferred debt issuance expenses

Total Assets

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Liabilities

Line of Credit

Long-term debt

Deferred tax liability

Accrued expenses and other liabilities

Total Liablities

Stockholders' Equity

Stockholders' Equity

Warrants, no par value: 945,594 issued and outstanding at November 30,
2011 (5,000,000 authorized)

Capital stock, non-convertible, $0.001 par value; 9,184,463 and
27,684,463 shares issued and outstanding at August 31, 2012 historical
and pro forma, respectively (100,000,000 shares authorized)

Additional paid-in capital, net of offering costs of $11,228,042 pro forma

Accumulated retained earnings

Total Stockholders' Equity
Non-controlling Interest Stockholders' Equity
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Historical

$ 57,321,502
19,529,783
13,302,783
11,783,529

3,659,240
754,176
516,427

4,677,908

$ 111,545,348

$ 125,000
910,863
7,388,060
2,945,571

11,369,494

1,370,700

9,185
92,719,962

6,076,007

100,175,854

At August 31, 2012
Pro Forma
Adjustments

227,468,914 (1)
65,000,000 (2)
141,790,106 (3)
(112,123) (4)
(834,191) (5)
(225,000,000) (1)
(1,177,330) (2)
(2,468,914) (1)
30,000,000 (3)

(427,398) (3)
(403,762) (5)
(177,000) (2)

834,191 (5)

1,177,330 (2)

$ 235,669,823

65,000,000 (2)

(34,250) (3)
(403,762) (5)
(177,000) (2)

(71,385) (4)

64,313,603

18,500 (3)
141,805,856 (3)
(427,398) (3)
(40,738) (4)

141,356,220
30,000,000 (3)

Pro Forma
Combined

$ 57,321,502
19,529,783
240,771,697
18,981,077

3,659,240
754,176
89,029
4,097,146

834,191
1,177,330

$ 347,215,171

$ 125,000
65,910,863
7,388,060
2,259,174

75,683,097

1,370,700

27,685
234,098,420

6,035,269

241,532,074
30,000,000
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Total Stockholder's Equity 100,175,854
Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity $ 111,545,348

See accompanying notes to pro forma financial statements
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171,356,220

$ 235,669,823

271,532,074

$ 347,215,171

39



Edgar Filing: CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc. - Form 424B4

Table of Conten

CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc.

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income

Revenue
Sales Revenue
Lease Income

Total Revenue

Expenses

Cost of Sales (excluding depreciation expense)
Management fees, net of expense reimbursements
Depreciation expense

Operating expenses

Interest expense

Amortization of deferred lease costs

Other expenses

Total Expenses

Gain (Loss) from Operations
Other Income
Other income

Total Other Income

Income before Income Taxes
Income tax expense, net

Net Income

Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling interest

Net income attributable to CorEnergy Stockholders

Earnings Per Common Share attributable to CorEnergy Stockholders:

Basic and Diluted

Weighted Average Shares of Common Stock Outstanding:

Basic and Diluted
Dividends declared per share

For the Year Ended November 30, 2011

Pro Forma Pro Forma
Historical Adjustments Combined

$ 2,161,723 $ $ 2,161,723
1,063,740 20,000,000 (6) 21,063,740
3,225,463 20,000,000 23,225,463
1,689,374 1,689,374
968,163 2,176,620 (7) 3,144,783
364,254 8,748,804 (1) 9,113,058
196,775 196,775
36,508 2,642,743 (2) 2,679,251
55,613 (5) 55,613

1,440,810 1,440,810
4,695,884 13,623,780 18,319,664
(1,470,421) 6,376,220 4,905,799
5,275,421 5,275,421
5,275,421 5,275,421
3,805,000 6,376,220 10,181,220
(882,857) (2,486,726) (8) (3,369,583)

$ 2,922,143 $ 3,889,494 6,811,637
1,560,893 (9) 1,560,893

$ 5,250,744

$ 0.32 $ 0.19
9,159,809 18,500,000 (3) 27,659,809

$ 0.40
See accompanying notes to pro forma financial statements.
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CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc.

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Statement of Income

Revenue
Sales Revenue
Lease Income

Total Revenue

Expenses

Cost of Sales (excluding depreciation expense)
Management fees, net of expense reimbursements
Asset acquisition expense

Depreciation expense

Operating expenses

Interest expense

Amortization of deferred leasing costs

Other expenses

Total Expenses

Gain (loss) from Operations
Other Income
Other income

Total Other Income

Income before Income Taxes
Income tax expense, net

Net Income

Less: Net income attributable to non-controlling interest

Net income attributable to CorEnergy Stockholders

Earnings Per Common Share attributable to CorEnergy Stockholders:

Basic and Diluted

Weighted Average Shares of Common Stock Outstanding:

Basic and Diluted
Dividends declared per share

See accompanying notes to pro forma financial statements
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For the nine months ended August 31, 2012

Historical

$ 5,804,894
1,914,732

7,719,626

4,416,947
800,397
238,969
740,437
558,450

69,418

1,037,679

7,862,297

(142,671)

20,299,841

20,299,841

20,157,170

(7,444,861)

$ 12,712,309

$ 1.38

9,180,776
$ 0.33
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Pro Forma
Adjustments

$
15,000,000(6)

15,000,000

1,628,348(7)
6,561,603(1)

1,982,057(2)
41,710(5)

10,213,718

4,786,282

4,786,282
(1,866,650)(8)

$ 2,919,632

1,170,670(9)

18,500,000(3)

Pro Forma
Combined

$ 5,804,894
16,914,732

22,719,626

4,416,947
2,428,745
238,969
7,302,040
558,450
2,051,475
41,710
1,037,679
18,076,015
4,643,611
20,299,841
20,299,841

24,943 452
(9,311,511)

$ 15,631,941

1,170,670

$ 14,461,271

$ 0.52

27,680,776
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Notes to the Unaudited Pro Forma Consolidated Financial Statements
Note 1. Basis of Presentation

These unaudited pro forma condensed consolidated financial statements and underlying pro forma adjustments are based upon currently
available information and certain estimates and assumptions made by management; therefore, actual results could differ materially from the pro
forma information. However, we believe the assumptions provide a reasonable basis for presenting the significant effects of the transactions
noted herein. We believe the pro forma adjustments give appropriate effect to those assumptions and are properly applied in the pro forma
information.

Note 2. Pro Forma Adjustments

(1) Represents leased property of $227,468,914 including $2,468,914 of Asset Acquisition Costs capitalized and amortized over the 26 year
depreciable life of the leased property. The purchase price allocation is subject to finalization upon completion of asset appraisals. The amount
of incremental pro forma depreciation expense is $8,748,804 and $6,561,603 for the year ended November 30, 2011 and the nine month period
ended August 31, 2012, respectively.

(2) Represents proceeds from the secured credit facility with KeyBank National Association. The loan is classified as non-current due to
interest-only debt service in year 1 of the debt agreement. Outstanding balances under the credit facility will generally accrue interest at a
variable annual rate equal to LIBOR plus 3.25%, or 3.462% as of December 7, 2012. The amount of incremental pro forma cash interest expense
is $2,250,300 and $1,687,724 for the year ended November 30, 2011 and the nine month period ended August 31, 2012, respectively. Debt
issuance costs of $1,177,330 will be paid from the proceeds of the credit facility and will be deferred and amortized over the life of the credit
facility. At August 31,2012, $177,000 of the debt issuance costs was recorded as a component of other assets and accrued expenses and has
been reclassified in the pro forma adjustments. The amount of incremental pro forma interest expense related to the amortization of these
deferred debt issuance costs is $392,443 and $294,333 for the year ended November 30, 2011 and the nine month period ended August 31, 2012,
respectively.

Funding of the credit facility is conditioned on the contribution of the proceeds of this offering to our wholly-owned subsidiary, Pinedale LP and
the receipt by Pinedale LP of the co-investment funds from Prudential. A 1/8% variance in interest rates would impact pro forma net income by
$81,250 and $60,938 for the pro forma year ended November 30, 2011 and the nine month period ended August 31, 2012, respectively.

(3) In connection with this offering, it is expected that the Company will issue 18,500,000 shares of $0.001 par value common stock at an
assumed public offering price of $8.25 (the last reported sale price of our common stock on the NYSE on December 7, 2012). Equity proceeds
of $141,396,958 reflected as an increase to stockholders equity are net of $11,228,042 of equity issuance costs and private equity placement
fees. At August 31, 2012, $427,398 of the equity issuance costs were recorded as a component of prepaid expenses. Of this total amount,
$393,148 were paid as of August 31, 2012 and $34,250 was accrued. These amounts have been reclassified in the pro forma adjustments. In
conjunction with the Acquisition, Prudential will contribute $30,000,000 of private equity to Pinedale LP in exchange for an approximate 18%
limited partner interest in Pinedale LP.

(4) Represents the use of proceeds to pay asset acquisition expenses of $138,169 net of the tax impact of $26,046 calculated at a statutory rate of
39% that result from these expenses. At August 31, 2012, asset acquisition expenses totaled $238,969, of which $71,385 were accrued. The
$66,784 that was not expensed and accrued at August 31, 2012 is reflected as a reduction in accumulated retained earnings, net of the tax impact
of $26,046 calculated at a statutory rate of 39%.
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(5) Represents the use of proceeds to pay $834,191 of leasing and related costs that qualify for deferral to be capitalized and amortized over the
15-year lease term. Of this amount, $403,762 was accrued and reflected in the balance sheet at August 31, 2012 as a component of other assets
and accrued expenses. The amount of incremental pro forma deferred leasing cost expense is $55,613 and $41,710 for the year ended November
30, 2011 and the nine month period ended August 31, 2012, respectively.

(6) Represents lease income from Lease Agreement. The amount of incremental pro forma lease income is $20,000,000 and $15,000,000 for the
year ended November 30, 2011 and the nine month period ended August 31, 2012, respectively.

(7) Represents the adjustment for a 1.0% annual management fee payable to our related party, external adviser, Corridor InfraTrust
Management, LLC, on approximately $217,000,000 of additional managed assets. Such fee results in an expense of $2,176,620 and $1,628,348
for the year ended November 30, 2011 and the nine month period ended August 31, 2012, respectively.

(8) Reflects the income tax expense related to the effect of the pro forma adjustments at a combined estimated federal and state (net of federal
benefit) statutory income tax rate of 39.0%.

(9) Net income attributable to non-controlling interest is based on 18.25% of the consolidated net income of the Company s majority owned
subsidiary, Pinedale LP. Pinedale LP s net income is comprised of all of the pro forma adjustments to the statements of income except that it
excludes pro forma Management fees and income tax expense adjustments, as these are expenses that will not be incurred by Pinedale LP.
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MANAGEMENT S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF
PRO FORMA FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Statements contained herein, other than historical facts, may constitute forward-looking statements. These forward-looking statements
involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors that may cause our actual results, levels of activity, performance or
achievements to be materially different from any anticipated results, levels of activity, performance or achievements expressed or implied by
such forward-looking statements. For a discussion of factors that could cause our actual results to differ from forward-looking statements
contained herein, please see the discussion under the heading Risk Factors herein and in Part I, Item 1A of our most recent Annual Report
filed on Form 10-K. See also Forward-Looking Statements.

We may experience fluctuations in our operating results due to a number of factors, including the return on our equity investments, the interest
rates payable on our debt investments, the default rates on such investments, the level of our expenses, variations in and the timing of the
recognition of realized and unrealized gains or losses, the degree to which we encounter competition, the performance of our leases in our
markets and general economic conditions. As a result of these factors, results for any period should not be relied upon as being indicative of
performance in future periods.

The following discussion and analysis presents management s view of our business, financial condition and overall performance and should be
read in conjunction with our Pro Forma Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and the accompanying notes under Pro Forma Financial
Information. This information is intended to provide investors with an understanding of our past performance, pro forma financial condition
resulting from the anticipated acquisition of the LGS and outlook for the future.

BUSINESS OBJECTIVE

Our goal is to acquire real property assets from energy companies that simultaneously lease the properties back from us under long-term triple
net leases. We seek to lease our real property assets pursuant to long-term, triple-net leases, under which the tenants are required to pay all
operating expenses of a property, including, but not limited to, real estate taxes, assessments and other governmental charges, insurance, utilities,
repairs and maintenance expenses.

We seek lease structures that provide base rents that are fixed and determinable, with escalators dependent upon increases in the Consumer Price
Index. Leases may also include participating rent features that would allow for us to participate in the financial performance and/or value of the
underlying energy infrastructure real property asset.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR NINE MONTHS ENDED AUGUST 31, 2012

Revenue from Operations

Total historical lease revenue for the nine month period ended August 31, 2012 represents sales revenue from our wholly-owned
subsidiary, Mowood, as well as lease income from our investment in the Eastern Interconnect Project ( EIP ). Total pro forma
revenue for the nine month period ended August 31, 2012 reflects the incremental lease revenue adjustment associated with the
LGS. The LGS is leased under a triple net operating lease which includes provisions for participating rent; however, lease
revenue related to the LGS is based on an annual minimum base rent of $20,000,000 per year, or $1,666,666 per month.
Minimum base rent is subject to annual maximum Consumer Price Index adjustments of up to 2.0%.

Total historical revenue for the nine month period ended August 31, 2012 was $7,719,626. Pro forma total revenue for the nine
month period ended August 31, 2012, as adjusted by nine months
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of incremental lease income of $15,000,000, was $22,719,626. Lease revenue for the historical nine month period ended
August 31, 2012 was $1,914,732. Pro forma lease revenue for the nine month period ended August 31, 2012, as adjusted by nine
months of incremental lease income of $15,000,000, totaled $16,914,732.

As of the historical period ended August 31, 2012, 100 percent of our leased property, based on the gross book value of real
estate investments, was leased to Public Service Company of New Mexico ( PNM ). Adjustments to leased property totaled
approximately $227.47 million, which includes $225 million of LGS leased property and $2.47 million of asset acquisition costs
capitalized and amortized over the 26 year depreciable life of the LGS leased asset. For the pro forma nine month period ended
August 31, 2012, approximately 5 percent of our leased property, based on gross book value of real estate investments, is leased
to PNM and approximately 95 percent is leased to Ultra Newco.

Approximately 100 percent of our total lease revenue was derived from PNM for the nine month historical period ended
August 31, 2012. For the pro forma nine month period ended August 31, 2012, approximately 11 and 89 percent, respectively, of
our total lease revenue was derived from PNM and Ultra Newco.

Expenses from Operations

Total reported expenses for the historical nine month period ended August 31, 2012 were approximately $7.86 million. Pro forma adjustments to
total historical reported expenses for the nine month period ended August 31, 2012 total approximately $10.21 million, resulting in pro forma
total reported expenses of approximately $18.08 million. The components of total expenses for the historical period, and the pro forma period,
including adjustments, are outlined in the following table:

Historical Adjustments Pro Forma
Cost of sales $4,416,947 $ 4,416,947
Management fees, net of expense reimbursements 800,397 1,628,348 2,428,745
Asset acquisition expenses 238,969 238,969
Depreciation 740,437 6,561,603 7,302,040
Operating expenses 558,450 558,450
Interest expense 69,418 1,982,057 2,051,475
Amortization of deferred lease costs 41,710 41,710
Other Expenses 1,037,679 1,037,679
Total $ 7,862,297 $10,213,718 $ 18,076,015

Depreciation expense of approximately $740,000 was incurred for the historical nine month period ended August 31, 2012. Pro
forma adjustments to depreciation expense for the nine month period ended August 31, 2012 total $6.56 million, which
represents nine months of depreciation on the approximately $227.47 million LGS leased property, depreciated straight-line over
the weighted average depreciable life of 26 years. Pro forma depreciation expense for the nine month period totaled
approximately $7.30 million.

Management fees, net of expense reimbursements, for the historical nine month period ended August 31, 2012 was
approximately $800,000. Pro forma adjustments to Management fees, net of expense reimbursements, for the nine month period
ended August 31, 2012 total approximately $1.63 million. The adjustment represents nine months of management fee charges on
approximately
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$217 million of additional net managed assets related to the LGS asset acquisition. Pro forma management fees, net of expense
reimbursements, for the nine month period ended August 31, 2012 total approximately $2.43 million. Management fees have not
been applied to the co-investment by Prudential.

Interest expense of approximately $69,000 for the historical nine month period ended August 31, 2012, represents a combination
of the interest on PNM debt, margin loan fees on CorEnergy s line of credit and interest expense incurred on Mowood s credit
facility. Interest on the PNM debt for the nine month period ended August 31, 2012 was approximately $113,000. Interest
expense, netted against amortization on above market debt for the nine month period ended August 31, 2012 of approximately
$86,000, results in a net interest expense on the PNM debt of approximately $27,000. Pro forma adjustments to interest expense
for the nine month period ended August 31, 2012 total approximately $1.98 million. The adjustment represents incremental
interest expense and amortization of debt issuance costs associated with $65.00 million of senior debt incurred in connection
with the LGS asset acquisition. The nine months of interest expense is calculated using an interest rate of LIBOR plus 3.25
percent and debt issuance cost amortization on $65.00 million of outstanding debt. The amortization of debt issuance costs
represents nine months of amortization expense based on approximately $1.17 million of deferred debt issuance costs amortized
over the 3-year term of the $65 million senior secured term loan. Pro forma interest expense for the nine-month period ended
August 31, 2012 totaled approximately $2.05 million.

Additional pro forma adjustments to total expenses include adjustments for the capitalization of debt and lease related expenses
incurred in connection with the LGS asset acquisition. The amortization of deferred leasing costs represents nine months of
amortization expense based on approximately $834,000 of deferred lease costs amortized over the 15-year term of the Lease
Agreement.
On November 1, 2012 we entered into an agreement with PNM to sell our 40 percent undivided interest in the EIP upon lease termination on
April 1, 2015 for $7.7 million. PNM will also accelerate its remaining lease payments to us. Both lease payments due in 2013 were paid upon
execution of the definitive agreement on November 1, 2012. Per the agreement, PNM will also pay us $100,000 to compensate us for legal costs
resulting from our filings with the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission. The three remaining lease payments due April 1, 2014, October 1,
2014 and April 1, 2015 will be paid on January 1, 2014 in full.

CorEnergy has reevaluated the residual value used to calculate its depreciation of EIP and has determined that a change in estimate is necessary.
The change in estimate results in higher depreciation expenses through the expiration of the lease in April 2015 of approximately $379,000 per
quarter.

Due to the changes in timing of lease payments, we adjusted the impact of future EIP lease payments in our pro forma AFFO calculation. We
have not made any adjustments to the generally accepted accounting principles ( GAAP ) treatment of the lease.

We purchased our EIP interest on June 30, 2011 for $12.8 million net of debt. As of our August 31, 2012 Form 10-Q filing, we anticipated a
total of approximately $8.5 million in remaining lease payments. Net of a final debt payment of $905,000 and interest expense of $46,381, we
expect to receive gross total lease payments of approximately $7.6 million through April 2015. Combined with the sale price of $7.7 million we
expect approximately 7% annualized gross return on our investment. Although this is at the low end of our long-term targeted range, we feel it is
appropriate for the risk profile of the asset.
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Total net income for the historical nine month period ended August 31, 2012 was approximately $12.71 million. Net income attributable to
CorEnergy for the pro forma nine month period ended August 31, 2012 is approximately $14.46 million after total aggregate adjustments related
to the investment in the LGS located in the Pinedale field.

Distributions

Our portfolio of real property assets and investment securities generate cash flow to us from which we pay distributions to stockholders. For the
historical period ended August 31, 2012, the most significant source of our stockholder distributions were distributions from our investment
securities. Following consummation of the LGS asset acquisition, the most significant source of our stockholder distributions will be lease
revenues generated by the Lease Agreement. The amount of a distribution declaration is recorded on the ex-dividend date.

The character of distributions made during the year may differ from their ultimate characterization for federal income tax purposes. As of
November 30, 2012, the Board of Directors declared total distributions of $0.44 per share ($0.11 per quarter). Upon completing the LGS asset
acquisition, we expect to announce an anticipated annual distribution increase of $0.06 per share from $0.44 to $0.50 per share, as we believe
our current investments and LGS asset acquisition may allow for such an annual distribution rate. If we change our fiscal year to a calendar year
as anticipated, our next distribution will be for the period beginning on December 1, 2012 and ending on March 31, 2013, with the anticipated
$0.125 per share quarterly distribution amount applicable to the period beginning January 1, 2013.

Upon completion of the LGS asset acquisition, we intend to make publicly available standard performance measures utilized by REITS,

including Funds from Operations ( FFO ), Adjusted Funds from Operations ( AFFO ) and Cash Available for Distributions ( CAD ). The Board of
Directors will continue to determine the amount of any distribution that we expect to pay our stockholders. A REIT is generally required to

distribute during the taxable year an amount equal to at least 90 percent of the REIT taxable income (determined under IRC section 857(b)(2),

without regard to the deduction for dividends paid). We intend to adhere to this requirement in order to qualify as a REIT.

Performance Measurement

In the past, we have provided investors with a measure of cash flow from operations, labeled distributable cash flow. Prospectively, and with this
pro forma information, we intend to provide standard performance measures utilized by REITs, including FFO, AFFO and CAD.

FFO

As defined by the National Association of Real Estate Investors, FFO represents net income (loss) before allocation to minority interests
(computed in accordance with GAAP, excluding gains (or losses) from sales of depreciable operating property, real estate-related depreciation
and amortization (excluding amortization of deferred financing costs or loan origination costs) and after adjustments for unconsolidated
partnerships and joint ventures. FFO is a supplemental, non-GAAP financial measure.

We present FFO because we consider it an important supplemental measure of our operating performance and believe that it is frequently used
by securities analysts, investors and other interested parties in the evaluation of REITS, many of which present FFO when reporting their results.
FFO is a key measure used by Corridor in assessing performance and in making resource allocation decisions.
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FFO is intended to exclude GAAP historical cost depreciation and amortization of real estate and related assets, which assumes that the value of
real estate diminishes ratably over time. Historically, however, real estate values have risen or fallen with market conditions, and that may also
be the case with the energy infrastructure assets which we expect to acquire. Because FFO excludes depreciation and amortization unique to real
estate, gains and losses from property dispositions and extraordinary items, it provides a performance measure that, when compared year over
year, reflects the impact to operations from trends in base and participating rent, company operating costs, development activities and interest
costs, thereby providing perspective not immediately apparent from net income.

We calculate FFO in accordance with standards established by the Board of Governors of the National Association of Real Estate Investment
Trusts, in its March 1995 White Paper (as amended in November 1999 and April 2002), which may differ from the methodology for calculating
FFO utilized by other equity REITs and, accordingly may not be comparable to such other REITs. FFO does not represent amounts available for
management s discretionary use because of needed capital replacement or expansion, debt service obligations or other commitments and
uncertainties. FFO should not be considered as an alternative to net income (loss) (computed in accordance with GAAP), as an indicator of our
financial performance or cash flow from operating activities (computed in accordance with GAAP), as an indicator of our liquidity, or as an
indicator of funds available for our cash needs, including our ability to make distributions or serve our indebtedness.

AFFO

We define AFFO as FFO plus transaction costs, amortization of debt issuance costs, deferred leasing costs, and above market rent, less
maintenance capital expenditures (if any), amortization of debt premium and adjustments to lease revenue resulting from the EIP sale.
Management uses AFFO as a measure of long-term sustainable cash flow.

We target a total return of 8% to 10% per annum on the infrastructure assets that we own, measured over the long-term. We intend to generate
this return from the base rent of our leases plus growth through acquisitions and participating portions of our rent. If we are successful growing
our AFFO per share of common stock, we anticipate being able to increase distributions to our stockholders. In addition, the increase in our
AFFO per share of common stock should result in capital appreciation. For our business as a whole, a key performance measure is AFFO yield,
defined as AFFO divided by invested capital, which measures the sustainable return on capital that we have deployed. We also measure the
growth of AFFO per share of common stock, which we believe is a proxy for our ability to increase distributions.

AFFO does not represent amounts available for management s discretionary use because of needed capital replacement or expansion, debt
service obligations or other commitments and uncertainties. AFFO should not be considered as an alternative to net income (loss) (computed in
accordance with GAAP), as an indicator of our financial performance or to cash flow from operating activities (computed in accordance with
GAAP), as an indicator of our liquidity, or as an indicator of funds available for our cash needs, including our ability to make distributions or
service our indebtedness.

In light of the per share AFFO growth that we foresee in our operations, we are targeting 1% to 3% annual dividend growth. We can provide no
assurances regarding our total return or annual dividend growth. See Risk Factors for a discussion of the many factors that may affect our ability
to make distributions at targeted rates, or at all.

CAD

We define CAD as AFFO less required principal payments on debt, needed expenditures for capital replacements, and other payment
obligations. Our management uses CAD as a measure of cash available to pay distributions to stockholders, and expects to maintain an excess of
CAD over distributions in order to provide evidence of distribution paying capacity.
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Following is a comparison of FFO, AFFO and CAD for the historical and pro forma nine months ended August 31, 2012 attributable to

f

nien

CorEnergy Stockholders:

FFO

FFO, AFFO, AND CAD RECONCILIATION

Historical
For the nine

months ended
August 31, 2012

Pro Forma
For the nine

months ended
August 31, 2012

Net Income (attributable to CorEnergy Stockholders): $ 12,712,309 $ 14,461,271
Add:

Depreciation and amortization attributable to CorEnergy Stockholders 740,437 6,104,548
Gains or losses from sales of property

Distributions received from investment securities 3,685,593 3,685,593
Income tax expense, net 7,444,861 8,970,847
Less:

Net realized and unrealized gain on trading securities 5,197,958 5,197,958
Net realized and unrealized gain on other equity securities 15,463,335 15,463,335
Funds from operations (FFO) 3,921,907 12,560,966
Add:

Transaction costs attributable to CorEnergy Stockholders 238,969 238,969
Amortization of debt issuance costs attributable to CorEnergy Stockholders 240,617
Amortization of deferred lease costs attributable to CorEnergy Stockholders 34,098
Amortization of above market leases 218,954 218,954
Less:

EIP Lease Adjustment 1,628,428 1,628,428
Non-incremental capital expenditures

Amortization of debt premium 86,020 86,020
Adjusted funds from operations (AFFO) 2,665,382 11,579,155
Less:

Principal amortization attributable to CorEnergy Stockholders 1,283,000 1,283,000
Cash Available for Distribution (CAD) $ 1,382,382 $ 10,296,155

Pro forma FFO for the nine month period ended August 31, 2012 totals approximately $12.56 million. FFO was calculated in accordance with

the National Association of Real Estate Investment Trust s definition above. In addition, we have made adjustments for non-cash items impacting
net income by eliminating a net realized and unrealized gain on trading securities of approximately $5.20 million, net realized and unrealized

gain on other equity securities of approximately $15.46 million and adding back distributions received from investment securities of
approximately $3.69 million and deferred tax expense of approximately $8.97 million.

AFFO

Pro forma AFFO for the nine month period ended August 31, 2012 totals approximately $11.58 million. In addition to the adjustments outlined
in the AFFO definition above, we have included an adjustment to lease income associated with the EIP investment. Based on the economic
return to CorEnergy resulting from the sale of our 40 percent undivided interest in EIP, we determined that it was appropriate to eliminate the
portion of EIP lease income attributable to return of capital, as a means to more accurately reflect EIP lease income contribution
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to CorEnergy distributable cash flow. CorEnergy believes that the portion of return of capital, unless adjusted, overstates the CorEnergy s
distribution paying capabilities and is not representative of sustainable EIP income over the life of the lease.

CAD

Pro forma CAD for the nine month period ended August 31, 2012 totals approximately $10.30 million. The principal payment represents debt
repayment on the EIP note for the nine month period.

FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAXATION

If we qualify and elect REIT status in the future, we will be taxed as a REIT rather than a C corporation and generally will not pay federal
income tax on taxable income that is distributed to our stockholders. Before we withdrew our election to be treated as a business development
company in September 2011, our distributions from earnings and profits were treated as qualified dividend income ( QDI ) and return of capital.
Following the withdrawal, and assuming we subsequently elect REIT status, our distributions from earnings and profits will be treated as
ordinary income and generally will not qualify as QDI, which special federal income tax treatment is scheduled to expire January 1, 2013. We

do not expect to qualify as a REIT prior to 2013, and therefore, our distributions would continue to be treated as QDI and return of capital.
Thereafter, under existing law, our distributions would be treated as ordinary income and return of capital.

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS

We do not have, and on a pro forma basis are not expected to have, any off-balance sheet arrangements that have or are reasonably likely to have
a current or future effect on our financial condition, changes in financial condition, revenues or expenses, results of operations, liquidity, capital
expenditures or capital resources.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

In addition to our historical contractual obligations as of August 31, 2012, Pinedale LP has entered into a $65 million secured term credit facility
with KeyBank to finance a portion of the Acquisition. The primary term of the credit facility is three years, with an option for a one-year
extension. Under the KeyBank credit facility, Pinedale LP is obligated to make monthly principal payments, which are to begin in the second
year of the term, equal to 0.42% of the $65 million loan outstanding.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

In connection with the Acquisition, Pinedale LP entered into a $65 million secured term credit facility with KeyBank that provides for monthly
payments of principal and interest. Outstanding balances under the credit facility generally accrue interest at a variable annual rate equal to
LIBOR plus 3.25%. The credit facility will be secured by the LGS. Pinedale LP is obligated to pay all accrued interest quarterly and is further
obligated to pay monthly, beginning March 7, 2014, 0.42% of the proposed amount outstanding on the loan on March 1, 2014.

We intend to enter into a $25 million revolving line of credit with KeyBank. The primary term of the facility is anticipated to be three years with
the option for a one-year extension. Outstanding balances under the revolving credit facility are expected to accrue interest at a variable annual
rate equal to LIBOR plus 4.0% or the Prime Rate plus 2.75%. We intend to use the facility to fund general working capital needs and if
necessary, to provide short-term financing for the acquisition of additional real property assets.
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We expect to use various interest rate swap derivatives to add stability to our interest expense and to manage our exposure to interest rate
movements on our LIBOR based borrowings. Interest rate swaps designated as cash flow hedges involve the receipt of variable-rate amounts
from a counterparty in exchange for us making fixed-rate payments over the life of the agreements without exchange of the underlying notional
amount.

As of August 31, 2012, the securities in our portfolio included (i) publicly-traded MLP equity securities and (ii) illiquid securities issued by
privately-held companies. The publicly-traded securities can be liquidated more readily than the others. With plans to liquidate our securities and
transition the company into one that purchases assets that qualify for being held by a REIT, we are reporting the gains (losses) on the securities
transactions as Other income and separate from Income from operations on our Statements of Income.

On June 8, 2012, we had declared effective a registration statement with the SEC to register an aggregate of $300 million of securities. The
proposed maximum aggregate offering price per class of security will be determined from time to time by us in connection with the issuance by
us of the securities registered and is not specified as to each class of security.

STRATEGY

We seek to acquire midstream and downstream U.S. energy infrastructure assets and concurrently enter into long-term triple net leases with
energy companies. Targeted assets may include pipelines, storage tanks, transmission lines and gathering systems, among others. These
sale-leaseback transactions provide the lessee company with a source of capital that is an alternative to other capital sources such as corporate
borrowing, mortgaging real property or equity offerings. We expect our leases to include provisions that enable us to participate in the revenue
and/or value of the underlying infrastructure real property asset. We intend to acquire infrastructure assets that qualify as real property for REIT
purposes. Our principal objective is to provide stockholders with an attractive risk-adjusted total return, with an emphasis on distributions and
distribution growth. As part of our disciplined investment philosophy, we intend to achieve these returns with a moderate level of leverage of
approximately 25% to 50% of assets.

In 2007, 2009 and 2010, the IRS issued three separate private letter rulings that defined certain energy infrastructure assets as real estate assets
for tax purposes. The potential qualifying real estate assets in the energy infrastructure sector are electric transmission and distribution systems,
pipeline systems and storage systems and systems used to transfer substances between modes of transportation, also known as terminaling
systems. We refer to such REIT-qualifying assets herein as real property assets. While private letter rulings provide insight into the current
thinking of the IRS on tax issues, such rulings may only be relied upon by the taxpayer to whom they were issued.

We do not plan to make additional investments in securities (other than short-term, highly liquid investments to be held pending acquisition of
real property assets) and intend to liquidate our securities portfolio in an orderly manner.

We are focused on meeting the requirement that a substantial percentage of our assets be REIT-qualifying investments that produce REIT
qualifying income. Our effort to meet that requirement will be accelerated if: (i) we are able to readily identify appropriate opportunities to
liquidate our securities portfolio, or (ii) we are able to raise capital to fund new acquisitions. In either event, we will need to have identified and
be able to consummate an adequate number of REIT-qualifying investments meeting our investment criteria. Other than the LGS, we do not
currently have any signed agreements or binding letters of intent for such acquisitions. There are opportunities that are in preliminary stages of
review, and consummation of any of these opportunities depends on a number of factors beyond our control. There can be no assurance that any
of these acquisition opportunities will result in consummated transactions. Regardless of our tax status, an investment in us will generally not
result in Unrelated Business Taxable Income.

To the extent we are unable to consummate sufficient other acquisitions of REIT-qualifying assets by the end of the first calendar quarter of
2013, we intend to liquidate a portion of our securities portfolio necessary to allow us to meet both the asset and income tests necessary to
qualify for REIT status for 2013.
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If we find sufficient suitable REIT-qualifying investments and satisfy the REIT requirements throughout 2013, we expect to make an election to
be treated as a REIT for tax purposes for 2013 by filing a Form 1120-REIT on or before March 15, 2014, or such later date to which we have
properly extended filing such income tax return. In any event, we will generally seek to acquire assets that allow for significant tax depreciation
in order to shield all or a significant portion of our taxable income such that our ability to pay distributions to our stockholders will not be
materially impacted by taxes in advance of our electing to be taxed as a REIT.

S-39

Table of Contents 52



Edgar Filing: CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc. - Form 424B4

Table of Conten
MANAGEMENT

We are externally managed by Corridor InfraTrust Management, LLC, an affiliate of Tortoise Capital Advisors, L.L.C., a registered investment
adviser with over $9.4 billion of assets under management in the U.S. energy infrastructure sector as of November 30, 2012. Corridor is a real
property asset manager with a focus on U.S. energy infrastructure real assets and has access to certain resources of TCA while acting as our
manager. Corridor assists us in identifying infrastructure real property assets that can be leased to businesses that make goods, provide services
or own assets other than securities, and is generally responsible for our day-to-day operations.

Corridor Team

We have no employees. Each of our officers is an employee of Corridor or one of its affiliates. Corridor is not obligated to dedicate certain of its
employees exclusively to us, nor is it or its employees obligated to dedicate any specific portion of its time to our business. Corridor uses the
proceeds from its management fee in part to pay compensation to its officers and employees who, notwithstanding that certain of them also are
our officers, receive no cash compensation directly from us.

We pay Corridor a management fee based on total assets under management. In aligning our strategy to focus on distributions and distribution
growth, Corridor is paid an incentive fee based on increases in distributions to our stockholders. A percentage of the Corridor incentive fee is
reinvested in CorEnergy.

Real Property Asset Management

We believe that effective management of our assets is essential to maintain and enhance property values. Important aspects of asset management
include restructuring transactions to meet the evolving needs of current tenants, re-leasing properties, refinancing debt, selling properties and
knowledge of the bankruptcy process.

The Corridor team has experience across several segments of the energy sector and is primarily responsible for investigating, analyzing and
selecting potential infrastructure asset acquisition opportunities. Currently, before an asset is acquired or sold by us, the transaction is reviewed
and approved by the Corridor Investment Committee, consisting of the managing directors of Corridor and TCA. The Corridor Investment
Committee will dissolve following the Acquisition, at which point future transactions will be submitted to our Board of Directors for final
approval following a recommendation from the managing directors of Corridor.

‘We monitor, on an ongoing basis, compliance by tenants with their lease obligations and other factors that could affect the financial performance
of any of our properties. Monitoring involves receiving assurances that each tenant has paid real estate taxes, assessments and other expenses
relating to the properties it occupies and confirming that appropriate insurance coverage is being maintained by the tenant. We review financial
statements of tenants and undertake regular physical inspections of the condition and maintenance of properties. In addition, we periodically
analyze each tenant s financial condition, the industry in which each tenant operates and each tenant s relative strength in its industry.

Investment Committee

Corridor has an investment committee comprised of Rick Green, H. Kevin Birzer, Zachary Hamel, Kenneth Malvey, Terry Matlack and Dave
Schulte. Messrs. Birzer, Hamel, Malvey, Matlack and Schulte each also serve on the investment committee of TCA. Currently, before an asset is
acquired or sold by us, the transaction is reviewed and approved by the Corridor Investment Committee, consisting of the managing directors of
Corridor and TCA. The Corridor Investment Committee will dissolve following the Acquisition, at which point future transactions will be
submitted to our Board of Directors for final approval following a recommendation from the managing directors of Corridor.
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Our Executive Officers

The following sets forth certain information with respect to our executive officers.

Name Position with CorEnergy Position with Corridor
Rick Green Chairman Managing Director
Dave Schulte President and CEO Managing Director
Becky Sandring Treasurer, Secretary Principal

Richard C. ( Rick ) Green

Mr. Green serves as our Chairman and is a co-founder and Managing Director of Corridor. He has spent more than 30 years in the energy
industry, serving as a CEO for more than 20 years. During his tenure, Mr. Green demonstrated leadership and perseverance in pioneering the
strategy and successful execution of a significant business expansion of Aquila Inc., formerly UtiliCorp United, to a Fortune 30 company.
Aquila Inc. was an international electric and gas utility business and national energy marketing and trading business. Mr. Green has also been
credited with leading a successful wind down of the merchant trading operations of Aquila Inc. to provide shareholder focus on the company s
utility market strategy during the 2002 energy market crisis. From 2006 to 2008, Mr. Green successfully directed the complicated separation and
ultimate sale of Aquila s multi-state utility operations. From 2008 to 2010, Mr. Green worked at The Calvin Group LLC, a consulting firm he
founded that leveraged the management and operational experience of the partners to catalyze the management teams of energy companies.

Mr. Green is currently on the board, and was previously a chairman of, the Midwest Research Institute, and has also served on the board for the
National Renewable Energy Laboratories in Golden, Colorado.

David J. Schulte, CFA

Mr. Schulte is a co-founder and Managing Director of both Corridor and TCA, where he serves on the investment committee, and is also our
Chief Executive Officer and President. In addition, Mr. Schulte formerly served as chief executive officer and currently serves as Senior Vice
President of five Tortoise NYSE traded closed-end funds and one open-end fund. From 1993 to 2002, Mr. Schulte was a Managing Director at
Kansas City Equity Partners, L.C. ( KCEP ). While a partner at KCEP, Mr. Schulte led private financing for two growth MLPs in the energy
infrastructure sector, Inergy, L.P., where he served as a director, and MarkWest Energy Partners, L.P., where he was a board observer. Prior to
joining KCEP, Mr. Schulte had over five years of experience completing acquisition and public equity financings as an investment banker at the
predecessor of Oppenheimer & Co., Inc. In 2011, Mr. Schulte and his partners at TCA were awarded the Ernst & Young Entrepreneur of the
Year® award for financial services companies in the Central Midwest region.

Rebecca M. Sandring

Ms. Sandring is Principal of Corridor and our Treasurer. She has over 20 years of experience in the energy industry. As a Vice President with
The Calvin Group LLC from 2008 to 2010, she created strategic business plans resulting in third-party investments and provided financial
leadership to a wind development company, which resulted in planned project cost reductions. From 1993 to 2008, Ms. Sandring had various
roles at Aquila Inc., formerly UtiliCorp United, a regulated gas and electric utility serving a multi-state region with international operations,
including transmission, distribution and generation. Ms. Sandring s roles at UtiliCorp and then Aquila Inc. were in operational finance, and
included business valuations, project and corporate finance, process efficiency, implementation of complex GAAP accounting policies and
internal accounting and risk system designs. As Director of Finance at Aquila Inc., she was responsible for leading the internal finance team,
which worked with external advisors regarding the strategic alternatives for Aquila Inc. In her role as Director of Finance for the unregulated
power generation division, which had over 4,000 megawatts of generation capacity, she was responsible for building the accounting, strategic
planning and forecasting team and process.
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Board of Directors

Our Board of Directors consists of Rick Green, Dave Schulte, Conrad Ciccotello, John Graham and Charles Heath. Each of Messrs. Ciccotello,
Graham and Heath also serve as an independent director for each of the NYSE listed closed-end funds for which TCA serves as investment
adviser.

Conrad S. Ciccotello

Mr. Ciccotello is an Associate Professor of Risk Management and Insurance at the Robinson College of Business, Georgia State University and
has been on faculty since 1999. Mr. Ciccotello also serves as Director of Personal Financial Planning Program at Georgia State University and is
an Investment Consultant to the University System of Georgia for its defined contribution retirement plan. Mr. Ciccotello was a member of the
faculty of Pennsylvania State University from 1997 to 1999. Mr. Ciccotello has published a number of academic and professional journal articles
on investment company performance and structure, with a focus on MLPs.

John R. Graham

Mr. Graham is an Executive-in-Residence and Professor of Finance (part-time) at the College of Business Administration, Kansas State
University, where he has served as a professor or adjunct professor since 1970. Mr. Graham is the Chairman of the Board, President and CEO,
Graham Capital Management, Inc., primarily a real estate development, investment and venture capital company, and the owner of Graham
Ventures, a business services and venture capital firm. Mr. Graham has served as part-time Vice President Investments of FB Capital
Management, Inc. (a registered investment adviser) since 2007. Mr. Graham was formerly CEO of the Kansas Farm Bureau Financial Services,
including seven affiliated insurance or financial service companies from 1979 to 2000.

Charles E. Heath

Mr. Heath retired in 1999 from his position as the Chief Investment Officer of GE Capital s Employers Reinsurance Corporation. Mr. Heath has
held the Chartered Financial Analyst designation since 1974.
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UNDERWRITING

Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated, KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc., RBC Capital Markets, LLC, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC
and Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated are acting as representatives of each of the underwriters named below. Subject to the terms and
conditions set forth in an underwriting agreement among us and the underwriters, we have agreed to sell to the underwriters, and each of the
underwriters has agreed, severally and not jointly, to purchase from us, the number of shares of common stock set forth opposite its name below.

Number

Underwriter of Shares
Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith
Incorporated
KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc.
RBC Capital Markets, LLC
Wells Fargo Securities, LLC
Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated

Total 18,500,000

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in the underwriting agreement, the underwriters have agreed, severally and not jointly, to purchase
all of the shares sold under the underwriting agreement if any of these shares are purchased. If an underwriter defaults, the underwriting
agreement provides that the purchase commitments of the nondefaulting underwriters may be increased or the underwriting agreement may be
terminated. We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the Securities Act or to contribute
to payments the underwriters may be required to make in respect of those liabilities.

The underwriters are offering the shares, subject to prior sale, when, as and if issued to and accepted by them, subject to approval of legal
matters by their counsel, including the validity of the shares, and other conditions contained in the underwriting agreement, such as the receipt
by the underwriters of officers certificates and legal opinions. The underwriters reserve the right to withdraw, cancel or modify offers to the
public and to reject orders in whole or in part.

Commissions and Discounts

The representatives have advised us that the underwriters propose initially to offer the shares to the public at the public offering price set forth on
the cover page of this prospectus supplement and to dealers at that price less a concession not in excess of $ per share. After the initial
offering, the public offering price, concession or any other term of the offering may be changed.

The following table shows the public offering price, underwriting discount and proceeds before expenses to us. The information assumes either
no exercise or full exercise by the underwriters of their option to purchase additional shares.

Per Share Without Option With Option
Public offering price $ $ $
Underwriting discount $ $ $
Proceeds, before expenses, to us $ $ $

The expenses of the offering, not including the underwriting discount, are estimated at $2.6 million and are payable by us. Certain advisory
support services will be provided by Montage Securities, LLC, a registered broker/dealer and an affiliate of CorEnergy. We may pay Montage
Securities, LLC a mutually agreed fee and will reimburse Montage Securities, LLC for certain of its expenses in connection with such services
related to the offering. The underwriters may reimburse us for certain of our expenses in connection with this offering.
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Option to Purchase Additional Shares

We have granted an option to the underwriters, exercisable for 30 days after the date of this prospectus, to purchase up to 2,775,000 additional
shares at the public offering price, less the underwriting discount. If the underwriters exercise this option, each will be obligated, subject to
conditions contained in the underwriting agreement, to purchase a number of additional shares proportionate to that underwriter s initial amount
reflected in the above table.

No Sales of Similar Securities

We, our executive officers and directors have agreed not to sell or transfer any common stock or securities convertible into, exchangeable for,
exercisable for, or repayable with common stock, for 90 days after the date of this prospectus supplement without first obtaining the written
consent of Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated and KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. Specifically, we and these other persons have
agreed, with certain limited exceptions, not to directly or indirectly

offer, pledge, sell or contract to sell any common stock,

sell any option or contract to purchase any common stock,

purchase any option or contract to sell any common stock,

grant any option, right or warrant for the sale of any common stock,

lend or otherwise dispose of or transfer any common stock,

request or demand that we file a registration statement related to the common stock, or

enter into any swap or other agreement that transfers, in whole or in part, the economic consequence of ownership of any

common stock whether any such swap or transaction is to be settled by delivery of shares or other securities, in cash or

otherwise.
This lock-up provision applies to common stock and to securities convertible into or exchangeable or exercisable for or repayable with common
stock. It also applies to common stock owned now or acquired later by the person executing the agreement or for which the person executing the
agreement later acquires the power of disposition. In the event that either (x) during the last 17 days of the lock-up period referred to above, we
issue an earnings release or material news or a material event relating to us occurs or (y) prior to the expiration of the lock-up period, we
announce that we will release earnings results or become aware that material news or a material event will occur during the 16-day period
beginning on the last day of the lock-up period, the restrictions described above shall continue to apply until the expiration of the 18-day period
beginning on the issuance of the earnings release or the occurrence of the material news or material event.

New York Stock Exchange Listing
The shares are listed on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol CORR.
Price Stabilization, Short Positions

Until the distribution of the shares is completed, SEC rules may limit underwriters and selling group members from bidding for and purchasing
our common stock. However, the representatives may engage in transactions that stabilize the price of the common stock, such as bids or
purchases to peg, fix or maintain that price.
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short sales and stabilizing transactions. Short sales involve the sale by the underwriters of a greater number of shares than they are required to
purchase in the offering. Covered short sales are sales made in an amount not greater than the underwriters option to purchase additional shares
described above. The underwriters may close out any covered short position by either exercising their option to purchase additional shares or
purchasing shares in the open market. In determining the source of shares to close out the covered short position, the underwriters will consider,
among other things, the price of shares available for purchase in the open market compared to the price at which they may purchase shares

through the option granted to them. Naked short sales are sales in excess of such option. The underwriters must close out any naked short
position by purchasing shares in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the underwriters are concerned that there
may be downward pressure on the price of our common stock in the open market after pricing that could adversely affect investors who purchase

in the offering. Stabilizing transactions consist of various bids for or purchases of shares of common stock made by the underwriters in the open
market prior to the completion of the offering.

Similar to other purchase transactions, the underwriters purchases to cover the syndicate short sales may have the effect of raising or maintaining
the market price of our common stock or preventing or retarding a decline in the market price of our common stock. As a result, the price of our
common stock may be higher than the price that might otherwise exist in the open market. The underwriters may conduct these transactions on
the NYSE, in the over-the-counter market or otherwise.

Neither we nor any of the underwriters make any representation or prediction as to the direction or magnitude of any effect that the transactions
described above may have on the price of our common stock. In addition, neither we nor any of the underwriters make any representation that
the representatives will engage in these transactions or that these transactions, once commenced, will not be discontinued without notice.

Electronic Distribution
In connection with the offering, certain of the underwriters or securities dealers may distribute prospectuses by electronic means, such as e-mail.
Other Relationships

Some of the underwriters and their affiliates have engaged in, and may in the future engage in, investment banking and other commercial
dealings in the ordinary course of business with us or our affiliates. They have received, or may in the future receive, customary fees and
commissions for these transactions.

BofA Merrill Lynch is acting as exclusive structuring advisor in connection with CorEnergy s energy infrastructure real asset strategy. KeyBanc
Capital Markets is acting as exclusive financial advisor to CorEnergy in connection with the Acquisition.

In addition, in the ordinary course of their business activities, the underwriters and their affiliates may make or hold a broad array of investments
and actively trade debt and equity securities (or related derivative securities) and financial instruments (including bank loans) for their own
account and for the accounts of their customers. Such investments and securities activities may involve securities and/or instruments of ours or
our affiliates. The underwriters and their affiliates may also make investment recommendations and/or publish or express independent research
views in respect of such securities or financial instruments and may hold, or recommend to clients that they acquire, long and/or short positions
in such securities and instruments.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the European Economic Area

In relation to each Member State of the European Economic Area which has implemented the Prospectus Directive (each, a Relevant Member
State ), with effect from and including the date on which the
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Prospectus Directive is implemented in that Relevant Member State (the Relevant Implementation Date ), no offer of shares may be made to the
public in that Relevant Member State other than:

to any legal entity which is a qualified investor as defined in the Prospectus Directive;

to fewer than 100 or, if the Relevant Member State has implemented the relevant provision of the 2010 PD Amending Directive,
150, natural or legal persons (other than qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus Directive), as permitted under the
Prospectus Directive, subject to obtaining the prior consent of the representatives; or

in any other circumstances falling within Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive,
provided that no such offer of shares shall require us or the representatives to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus
Directive or supplement a prospectus pursuant to Article 16 of the Prospectus Directive.

Each person in a Relevant Member State who initially acquires any shares or to whom any offer is made will be deemed to have represented,
acknowledged and agreed that (A) itis a qualified investor within the meaning of the law in that Relevant Member State implementing Article
2(1)(e) of the Prospectus Directive, and (B) in the case of any shares acquired by it as a financial intermediary, as that term is used in Article

3(2) of the Prospectus Directive, the shares acquired by it in the offering have not been acquired on behalf of, nor have they been acquired with a
view to their offer or resale to, persons in any Relevant Member State other than qualified investors as defined in the Prospectus Directive, or in
circumstances in which the prior consent of the representatives has been given to the offer or resale. In the case of any shares being offered to a
financial intermediary as that term is used in Article 3(2) of the Prospectus Directive, each such financial intermediary will be deemed to have
represented, acknowledged and agreed that the shares acquired by it in the offer have not been acquired on a non-discretionary basis on behalf
of, nor have they been acquired with a view to their offer or resale to, persons in circumstances which may give rise to an offer of any shares to
the public other than their offer or resale in a Relevant Member State to qualified investors as so defined or in circumstances in which the prior
consent of the representatives has been obtained to each such proposed offer or resale.

We, the representatives and their affiliates will rely upon the truth and accuracy of the foregoing representation, acknowledgement and
agreement.

This prospectus has been prepared on the basis that any offer of shares in any Relevant Member State will be made pursuant to an exemption
under the Prospectus Directive from the requirement to publish a prospectus for offers of shares. Accordingly any person making or intending to
make an offer in that Relevant Member State of shares which are the subject of the offering contemplated in this prospectus may only do so in
circumstances in which no obligation arises for us or any of the underwriters to publish a prospectus pursuant to Article 3 of the Prospectus
Directive in relation to such offer. Neither we nor the underwriters have authorized, nor do they authorize, the making of any offer of shares in
circumstances in which an obligation arises for us or the underwriters to publish a prospectus for such offer.

For the purpose of the above provisions, the expression an offer to the public in relation to any shares in any Relevant Member State means the
communication in any form and by any means of sufficient information on the terms of the offer and the shares to be offered so as to enable an
investor to decide to purchase or subscribe the shares, as the same may be varied in the Relevant Member State, by any measure implementing
the Prospectus Directive in the Relevant Member State and the expression Prospectus Directive means Directive 2003/71/EC (including the
2010 PD Amending Directive, to the extent implemented in the Relevant Member States) and includes any relevant implementing measure in

the Relevant Member State and the expression 2010 PD Amending Directive means Directive 2010/73/EU.
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Notice to Prospective Investors in the United Kingdom

In addition, in the United Kingdom, this document is being distributed only to, and is directed only at, and any offer subsequently made may

only be directed at persons who are qualified investors (as defined in the Prospectus Directive) (i) who have professional experience in matters
relating to investments falling within Article 19(5) of the Financial Services and Markets Act 2000 (Financial Promotion) Order 2005, as
amended (the Order ) and/or (ii) who are high net worth companies (or persons to whom it may otherwise be lawfully communicated) falling
within Article 49(2)(a) to (d) of the Order (all such persons together being referred to as relevant persons ). This document must not be acted on
or relied on in the United Kingdom by persons who are not relevant persons. In the United Kingdom, any investment or investment activity to
which this document relates is only available to, and will be engaged in with, relevant persons.

Notice to Prospective Investors in Switzerland

The shares may not be publicly offered in Switzerland and will not be listed on the SIX Swiss Exchange ( SIX ) or on any other stock exchange or
regulated trading facility in Switzerland. This document has been prepared without regard to the disclosure standards for issuance prospectuses
under art. 652a or art. 1156 of the Swiss Code of Obligations or the disclosure standards for listing of prospectuses under art. 27 ff. of the SIX
Listing Rules or the listing rules of any other stock exchange or regulated trading facility in Switzerland. Neither this document nor any other
offering or marketing material relating to the shares or the offering may be publicly distributed or otherwise made publicly available in

Switzerland.

Neither this document nor any other offering or marketing material relating to the offering, us or the shares have been or will be filed with or
approved by any Swiss regulatory authority. In particular, this document will not be filed with, and the offer of shares will not be supervised by,
the Swiss Financial Market Supervisory Authority ( FINMA ), and the offer of shares has not been and will not be authorized under the Swiss
Federal Act on Collective Investment Schemes ( CISA ). The investor protection afforded to acquirers of interests in collective investment
schemes under the CISA does not extend to acquirers of shares.

Notice to Prospective Investors in the Dubai International Financial Centre

This prospectus supplement relates to an Exempt Offer in accordance with the Offered Securities Rules of the Dubai Financial Services

Authority ( DFSA ). This prospectus supplement is intended for distribution only to persons of a type specified in the Offered Securities Rules of
the DFSA. It must not be delivered to, or relied on by, any other person. The DFSA has no responsibility for reviewing or verifying any
documents in connection with Exempt Offers. The DFSA has not approved this prospectus supplement nor taken steps to verify the information
set forth herein and has no responsibility for the prospectus supplement. The shares to which this prospectus supplement relate may be illiquid
and/or subject to restrictions on their resale. Prospective purchasers of the shares offered should conduct their own due diligence on the shares. If
you do not understand the contents of this prospectus supplement, you should consult an authorized financial advisor.
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LEGAL MATTERS

Certain legal matters in connection with the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for us by Husch Blackwell LLP, Kansas City,

Missouri ( Husch Blackwell ). Certain legal matters in connection with the securities offered hereby will be passed upon for the underwriters by
Andrews Kurth LLP, New York, New York ( Andrews Kurth ). Husch Blackwell and Andrews Kurth may rely on the opinion of Venable LLP,
Baltimore, Maryland, on certain matters of Maryland law.

EXPERTS

The financial statements incorporated in this prospectus supplement and the accompanying prospectus by reference from our Annual Report on
Form 10-K, as amended, for the year ended November 30, 2011, and the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting have been
audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their reports thereon, incorporated by reference
herein. Such financial statements are incorporated herein by reference in reliance upon such reports given on the authority of such firm as
experts in accounting and auditing.

The consolidated financial statements of Ultra Petroleum Corp. at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2011, appearing and incorporated by reference in this Prospectus Supplement, and the effectiveness of Ultra Petroleum
Corp. s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011 have been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, independent registered
public accounting firm, as set forth in their report thereon, included and incorporated herein by reference. Such consolidated financial statements
and Ultra Petroleum Corp. management s assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011 are
included and incorporated by reference in reliance upon such reports given on the authority of such firm as experts in accounting and auditing.

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION

We are subject to the informational requirements of the Exchange Act, and in accordance with those requirements, we file reports and other
information with the SEC. The reports and other information can be inspected and copied at the public reference facilities maintained by the
SEC at Room 1580, 100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549. Copies of this material can be obtained by mail from the Public Reference
Section of the SEC at Room 1580,100 F Street, N.E., Washington, D.C. 20549 at prescribed rates. The public may obtain information on the
operation of the public reference room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet website (http://www.sec.gov) that
contains reports, proxy and information statements and other materials that are filed through the SEC Electronic Data Gathering, Analysis and
Retrieval (EDGAR) system. In addition, our common stock is listed on the New York Stock Exchange, and we are required to file reports, proxy
and information statements and other information with the New York Stock Exchange. These documents can be inspected at the principal office
of the New York Stock Exchange, 20 Broad Street, New York, New York 10005. We have filed with the SEC a registration statement on Form
S-3 (Registration File No. 333-176944) covering the securities offered by this prospectus supplement. You should be aware that this prospectus
supplement does not contain all of the information contained or incorporated by reference in that registration statement and its exhibits and
schedules. You may inspect and obtain copies of the registration statement, including exhibits, schedules, reports and other information that we
have filed with the SEC, as described in the preceding paragraph. Statements contained in this prospectus supplement concerning the contents of
any document we refer you to are not necessarily complete and in each instance we refer you to the applicable document filed with the SEC for
more complete information.
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INCORPORATION OF CERTAIN INFORMATION BY REFERENCE

The SEC allows us to incorporate by reference the information that we file with the SEC, which means that we can disclose important
information to you by referring to those documents. The information incorporated by reference is an important part of this prospectus
supplement and the accompanying prospectus. Any statement contained in a document which is incorporated by reference in this prospectus
supplement or the accompanying prospectus is automatically updated and superseded if information contained in this prospectus supplement, the
accompanying prospectus, or information that we later file with the SEC modifies or replaces that information.

The documents listed below have been filed by us under the Exchange Act and are incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement:

Our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended November 30, 2011, as originally filed with the SEC on February 13, 2012
and as amended and filed with the SEC on May 1, 2012 and June 1, 2012.

Our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended February 29, 2012, as originally filed with the SEC on April 9, 2012
and as amended and filed with the SEC on May 9, 2012.

Our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended May 31, 2012, as originally filed with the SEC on July 5, 2012.

Our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended August 31, 2012, as originally filed with the SEC on October 5, 2012.

Our Current Reports on Form 8-K as filed with the SEC on March 13, 2012, April 13, 2012, June 8, 2012, June 14,

2012, June 20, 2012, August 8, 2012, October 2, 2012, November 6, 2012, November 13, 2012, November 14, 2012,

December 3, 2012 and December 10, 2012 (excluding any information that is deemed to have been furnished and not filed with
the SEC).

The description of our common shares included in our registration statement on Form 8-A filed on February 1, 2007.
In addition, all documents filed by us under Section 13(a), 13(c), 14 or 15(d) of the Exchange Act (excluding any information that is deemed to
have been furnished andnot filed with the SEC) after the date of this prospectus supplement and prior to the termination of the offering of the
securities covered by this prospectus supplement, are incorporated by reference herein.

To obtain a free copy of any of the documents incorporated by reference in this prospectus supplement (other than exhibits, unless they are
specifically incorporated by reference in such documents), please contact us at 4200 W. 115" Street, Suite 210, Leawood, KS 66211.

As you read these documents, you may find some differences in information from one document to another. You should assume that the
information appearing in this prospectus supplement or the accompanying prospectus is accurate only as of the date on their respective covers,
and you should assume the information appearing in any document incorporated or deemed to be incorporated by reference in this prospectus
supplement or the accompanying prospectus is accurate only as of the date of that document. Our business, financial condition, results of
operations and prospects may have changed since those dates.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Ultra Petroleum Corp.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Ultra Petroleum Corp. as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, shareholders equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of Ultra
Petroleum Corp. at December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended December 31, 2011, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed its reserve estimates and related disclosures as a result of
adopting new oil and gas reserve estimation and disclosure requirements as of December 31, 2009.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), Ultra Petroleum
Corp. s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated February 17, 2012 expressed an
unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Houston, Texas

February 17,2012
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
The Board of Directors and Shareholders of Ultra Petroleum Corp.

We have audited Ultra Petroleum Corp. s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, based on criteria established in
Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO
criteria). Ultra Petroleum Corp. s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its
assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management s Report on Internal
Control over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company s internal control over financial reporting based on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Ultra Petroleum Corp. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2011, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
balance sheets of Ultra Petroleum Corp. as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of operations, shareholders
equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011 of Ultra Petroleum Corp. and our report dated February
17, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Houston, Texas

February 17,2012
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ULTRA PETROLEUM CORP.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Revenues:
Natural gas sales
Oil sales

Total operating revenues

Expenses:

Lease operating expenses

Production taxes

Gathering fees

Transportation charges

Depletion, depreciation and amortization
Write-down of proved oil and gas properties
General and administrative

Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)

Other income (expense), net:
Interest expense

Gain on commodity derivatives
Litigation expense

Other income (expense), net

Total other income (expense), net

Income (loss) before income tax provision (benefit)

Income tax provision (benefit)
Net income (loss)

Basic Earnings per Share:
Net income (loss) per common share basic

Fully Diluted Earnings per Share:

Net income (loss) per common share fully diluted

Weighted average common shares outstanding basic

Weighted average common shares outstanding  fully diluted

Year Ended December 31,

2011

2010

2009

(Amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars,

$ 982413
119,383

1,101,796
51,758
97,094
56,511
64,243

346,394

26,032

642,032
459,764

(63,156)
313,732

532

251,108
710,872
257,670

$ 453,202

$ 2.97

$ 2.94

152,754

154,336

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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except per share data)

$ 886,396
92,990

979,386
45,938
95,914
50,126
64,965

241,796

24,351

523,090
456,296

(49,032)
325,452

(9,902)
260

266,778
723,074
258,615

$ 464,459

$ 3.05

$ 301

152,346

154,253

$ 601,023
65,739

666,762
40,679
66,970
45,155
58,011

201,826

1,037,000
19,772

1,469,413
(802,651)

(37,167)
146,517

(2,888)

106,462
(696,189)
(245,136)

$ (451,053)

$ (2.98)

$ (2.98)
151,367

151,367
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, December 31,
2011 2010

ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Oil and gas revenue receivable
Joint interest billing and other receivables
Derivative assets
Inventory
Prepaid drilling costs and other current assets

Total current assets

Oil and gas properties, net, using the full cost method of accounting:
Proved

Unproved

Property, plant and equipment

Long-term derivative assets

Deferred financing costs and other

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Production taxes payable

Interest payable

Derivative liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Capital cost accrual

Total current liabilities

Long-term debt

Deferred income tax liabilities

Long-term derivative liabilities

Other long-term obligations

Commitments and contingencies (Note 12)

Shareholders equity:

Common stock no par value; authorized unlimited; issued and outstanding
152,567,813, at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively
Treasury stock

Retained earnings

Total shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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152,476,564 and

(Amounts in thousands of
U.S. dollars, except share data)

$ 11,307
121

88,243
82,370
230,385
1,164

6,330

419,920
3,651,622
537,526
246,586

14,051

$ 4,869,705

$ 295,873
62,117
30,306

73,380
209,303

670,979
1,903,000
635,009

67,008

463,221

(14,951)

1,145,439

1,593,709

$ 4,869,705

$ 70,834
98

95,142
48,561
133,991
2,760

9,663

361,049

2,589,423
486,247
149,104

2,066
7,726

$ 3,595,615

$ 210311
53,382
26,878

718
42,685
84,042

418,016
1,560,000
420,711
5,337
52,575

426,779

712,197
1,138,976

$ 3,595,615
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS

Balances at December 31, 2008

Stock options exercised

Employee stock plan grants

Shares re-issued from treasury

Net share settlements

Fair value of employee stock plan grants
Tax benefit of stock options exercised
Comprehensive earnings:

Net earnings

Change in derivative instruments,

ULTRA PETROLEUM CORP.

EQUITY

(Amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars, except share data)

Shares
Issued and
Outstanding
151,233

666
85

(225)

Reclassification of derivative fair value into

earnings, net of taxes
Total comprehensive earnings

Balances at December 31, 2009

Stock options exercised

Employee stock plan grants

Shares re-issued from treasury

Net share settlements

Fair value of employee stock plan grants
Tax benefit of stock options exercised
Net income

Balances at December 31, 2010

Stock options exercised

Employee stock plan grants

Shares repurchased

Shares re-issued from treasury

Net share settlements

Fair value of employee stock plan grants
Tax benefit of stock options exercised
Net income

Balances at December 31, 2011

Table of Contents

151,759

1,206
105

(502)

152,568

672

150
(588)

(325)

152,477

Common
Stock
$ 346,832
1,430
(1,430)

16,294
14,213

$377,339
6,561
4,841
(587)
21,103
17,522

$ 426,779

9,928

(686)

20,988
6,212

$463,221

Retained
Earnings

$ 774,117

3,397
(33,785)
(11,293)

(451,053)

$ 281,383

(9,938)
(23,707)

464,459

$ 712,197

(4,531)

(15,429)

453,202

$ 1,145,439

Accumulated
Other
Comprehensive Treasury
Income/(Loss) Stock
$ 15,577 $ (45,740)
35,215
(15,577)
$ $ (10,525)
10,525
$ $
700
(20,868)
5,217
$ $(14,951)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Total
Shareholders
Equity
$ 1,090,786
1,430
3,397

(11,293)
16,294
14,213

(451,053)

(15,577)
(466,630)

$ 648,197

6,561
4,841

(23,707)
21,103
17,522

464,459

$ 1,138,976

9,928
700
(20,868)

(15,429)
20,988

6,212
453,202

$ 1,593,709
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ULTRA PETROLEUM CORP.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Net income (loss) for the period

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010

2009

(Amounts in thousands of U.S. dollars)

Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to cash provided by operating activities:

Depletion and depreciation

Write-down of proved oil and gas properties
Deferred and current non-cash income taxes
Unrealized (gain) loss on commodity derivatives
Excess tax benefit from stock based compensation
Stock compensation

Other

Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Restricted cash

Accounts receivable

Other current assets

Prepaid expenses and other

Other non-current assets

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Production taxes payable

Interest payable

Other long-term obligations

Current taxes payable

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing Activities:

Acquisition of oil and gas properties

Oil and gas property expenditures
Gathering system expenditures

Proceeds from sale of oil and gas properties
Change in capital cost accrual

Restricted cash

Inventory

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities:

Borrowings on long-term debt

Payments on long-term debt

Proceeds from issuance of Senior Notes

Deferred financing costs

Repurchased shares/net share settlements

Excess tax benefit from stock based compensation
Proceeds from exercise of options

Net cash provided by financing activities

(Decrease) increase in cash during the period
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period
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$ 453,202 $ 464,459
346,394 241,796
251,206 253,926

(100,383) (208,625)
(6,212) (17,522)
13,919 12,944

1,495 734
(23) 1,583
(26,910) (31,966)
17
(1,291) (229)
(1,176)
86,079 91,982
8,735 (7,439)
3,428 14,867
433 6,035
3,203 3,359
1,033,292 824,728
(403,806)
(1,435,611) (1,164,389)
(83,996) (76,703)
5,821 68,420
125,261 19,826
28,257
1,595 1,738
(21,865) (2,442)
(1,408,795) (1,529,099)
1,257,000 1,000,000
(914,000) (1,260,000)
1,025,000
(6,866) (4,425)
(36,298) (23,707)
6,212 17,522
9,928 6,561
315,976 760,951
(59.527) 56,580
70,834 14,254
$ 11,307 $ 70,834

$ (451,053)

201,826
1,037,000
(253,966)
92,849
(14,213)
10,901
1,023

1,046
14,974
(2,913)

4,268
(2,905)

(38,079)

(596)
5,902

(13,638)
215

592,641

(673,518)
(67,833)

(56,327)

(28,257)
4,024
1,300

(820,611)

817,000
(827,000)
235,000

(1,283)
(11,293)
14,213

1,430

228,067

97
14,157

$ 14254

71



Edgar Filing: CorEnergy Infrastructure Trust, Inc. - Form 424B4

SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION:

Cash paid for:
Interest $ 88,964
Income taxes $ 7,260

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$
$

53,291
2,537

$
$

30,579
11,403
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ULTRA PETROLEUM CORP.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All amounts are expressed in thousands of U.S. dollars (except per share data), unless otherwise noted).

Ultra Petroleum Corp. (the Company ) is an independent oil and natural gas company engaged in the acquisition, exploration, development, and
production of oil and natural gas properties. The Company is incorporated under the laws of the Yukon Territory, Canada. The Company s
principal business activities are in the Green River Basin of southwest Wyoming and the north-central Pennsylvania area of the Appalachian
Basin. In addition, the Company has recently acquired acreage in eastern Colorado s Denver Julesburg Basin.

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES:

(a) Basis of presentation and principles of consolidation:  The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its
wholly owned subsidiaries. The Company presents its financial statements in accordance with U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
( GAAP ). All inter-company transactions and balances have been eliminated upon consolidation.

(b) Cash and cash equivalents: The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

(c) Restricted cash: Restricted cash represents cash received by the Company from production sold where the final division of ownership of
the production is unknown or in dispute. Wyoming law requires that these funds be held in a federally insured bank in Wyoming.

(d) Property, plant and equipment: Capital assets are recorded at cost and depreciated using the declining-balance method based on a
seven-year useful life. Gathering system expenditures are recorded at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method based on a 30-year
useful life.

(e) Oil and natural gas properties: On January 6, 2010, the FASB issued an ASU updating oil and gas reserve estimation and disclosure
requirements. The ASU amends FASB ASC 932 to align the reserve calculation and disclosure requirements with the requirements in SEC
Release No. 33-8995. SEC Release No. 33-8995, amends oil and gas reporting requirements under Rule 4-10 of Regulation S-X and Industry
Guide 2 in Regulation S-K revising oil and gas reserves estimation and disclosure requirements. The rules include changes to pricing used to
estimate reserves, the ability to include non-traditional resources in reserves, the use of new technology for determining reserves and permitting
disclosure of probable and possible reserves. The primary objectives of the revisions are to increase the transparency and information value of
reserve disclosures and improve comparability among oil and gas companies. Accordingly, the Company adopted the update to FASB ASC 932
as of December 31, 2009. The implementation of this rule did not result in material additions to the Company s proved reserves included in this
report.

The Company uses the full cost method of accounting for exploration and development activities as defined by the Securities and Exchange
Commission ( SEC ). Separate cost centers are maintained for each country in which the Company incurs costs. Under this method of accounting,
the costs of unsuccessful, as well as successful, exploration and development activities are capitalized as properties and equipment. This includes
any internal costs that are directly related to exploration and development activities but does not include any costs related to production, general
corporate overhead or similar activities. The carrying amount of oil and natural gas properties also includes estimated asset retirement costs
recorded based on the fair value of the asset retirement obligation when incurred. Gain or loss on the sale or other disposition of oil and natural

gas properties is not recognized, unless the gain or loss would significantly alter the relationship between capitalized costs and proved reserves

of oil and natural gas attributable to a country.

F-8
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ULTRA PETROLEUM CORP.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The sum of net capitalized costs and estimated future development costs of oil and natural gas properties are amortized using the
units-of-production method based on the proved reserves as determined by independent petroleum engineers. Oil and natural gas reserves and
production are converted into equivalent units based on relative energy content. Asset retirement obligations are included in the base costs for
calculating depletion.

Under the full cost method, costs of unevaluated properties and major development projects expected to require significant future costs may be
excluded from capitalized costs being amortized. The Company excludes significant costs until proved reserves are found or until it is
determined that the costs are impaired. Excluded costs, if any, are reviewed quarterly to determine if impairment has occurred. The amount of
any impairment is transferred to the capitalized costs being amortized.

Companies that use the full cost method of accounting for oil and natural gas exploration and development activities are required to perform a
ceiling test calculation each quarter. The full cost ceiling test is an impairment test prescribed by SEC Regulation S-X Rule 4-10. The ceiling test
is performed quarterly, on a country-by-country basis, utilizing the average of prices in effect on the first day of the month for the preceding
twelve month period in accordance with SEC Release No. 33-8995. The ceiling limits such pooled costs to the aggregate of the present value of
future net revenues attributable to proved crude oil and natural gas reserves discounted at 10% plus the lower of cost or market value of

unproved properties less any associated tax effects. If such capitalized costs exceed the ceiling, the Company will record a write-down to the
extent of such excess as a non-cash charge to earnings. Any such write-down will reduce earnings in the period of occurrence and results in a
lower depletion, depreciation and amortization ( DD&A ) rate in future periods. A write-down may not be reversed in future periods even though
higher oil and natural gas prices may subsequently increase the ceiling.

(f) Inventories: Materials and supplies inventories are carried at lower of cost or market. Inventory costs include expenditures and other
charges directly and indirectly incurred in bringing the inventory to its existing condition and location. The Company uses the weighted average
method of recording its inventory. Selling expenses and general and administrative expenses are reported as period costs and excluded from
inventory cost. At December 31, 2011, inventory of $1.2 million primarily includes the cost of pipe and production equipment that will be
utilized during the 2012 drilling program.

(g) Derivative instruments and hedging activities: ~Currently, the Company largely relies on commodity derivative contracts to manage its
exposure to commodity price risk. These commodity derivative contracts are typically referenced to natural gas index prices as published by
independent third parties. Additionally, and from time to time, the Company enters into physical, fixed price forward natural gas sales in order to
mitigate its commodity price exposure on a portion of its natural gas production. These fixed price forward gas sales are considered normal sales
in the ordinary course of business and outside the scope of FASB ASC Topic 815, Derivatives and Hedging ( FASB ASC 815 ). The Company
does not offset the value of its derivative arrangements with the same counterparty. (See Note 8).

(h) Income taxes: Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax basis and operating loss and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on
deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date. Valuation
allowances are recorded related to deferred tax assets based on the more likely than not criteria described in FASB ASC Topic 740, Income
Taxes. In addition, the Company recognizes the financial statement benefit of a tax position only after determining that the relevant tax authority
would more likely than not sustain the position following an audit.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(i) Earnings per share: Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing net earnings attributable to common stockholders by the weighted
average number of common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted earnings per share is computed by adjusting the average number of
common shares outstanding for the dilutive effect, if any, of common stock equivalents. The Company uses the treasury stock method to
determine the dilutive effect.

The following table provides a reconciliation of components of basic and diluted net income (loss) per common share:

December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Net income (loss) $453,202 $ 464,459 $(451,053)
Weighted average common shares outstanding during the period 152,754 152,346 151,367
Effect of dilutive instruments 1,582 1,907 @))
Weighted average common shares outstanding during the period including the effects of
dilutive instruments 154,336 154,253 151,367
Net income (loss) per common share basic $ 297 $ 3.05 $ (298
Net income (loss) per common share fully diluted $ 2.94 $ 3.01 $ (2.98)
Number of shares not included in dilutive earnings per share that would have been anti-dilutive
because the exercise price was greater than the average market price of the common shares 1,030 1,214 (1)

(1) Due to the net loss for the year ended December 31, 2009, 2.2 million shares for options and restricted stock units were anti-dilutive and
excluded from the computation of loss per share.

(j) Use of estimates: Preparation of consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the

financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those

estimates.

(k) Accounting for share-based compensation: The Company measures and recognizes compensation expense for all share-based payment
awards made to employees and directors, including employee stock options, based on estimated fair values in accordance with FASB ASC Topic
718, Compensation  Stock Compensation.

(1) Fair value accounting: The Company follows FASB ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures ( FASB ASC 820 ), which
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value under GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. This
statement applies under other accounting topics that require or permit fair value measurements. See Note 9 for additional information.

(m) Asset retirement obligation: The initial estimated retirement obligation of properties is recognized as a liability with an associated increase
in oil and gas properties for the asset retirement cost. Accretion expense is recognized over the estimated productive life of the related assets. If
the fair value of the estimated asset retirement obligation changes, an adjustment is recorded to both the asset retirement obligation and the asset
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retirement cost. Revisions in estimated liabilities can result from revisions of estimated inflation rates, changes in service and equipment costs
and changes in the estimated timing of settling asset retirement obligations.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

(n) Revenue recognition: The Company generally sells natural gas and condensate under both long-term and short-term agreements at
prevailing market prices and under multi-year contracts that provide for a fixed price of oil and natural gas. The Company recognizes revenues
when the oil and natural gas is delivered, which occurs when the customer has taken title and has assumed the risks and rewards of ownership,
prices are fixed or determinable and collectability is reasonably assured. The Company accounts for oil and natural gas sales using the
entitlements method. Under the entitlements method, revenue is recorded based upon the Company s ownership share of volumes sold, regardless
of whether it has taken its ownership share of such volumes. The Company records a receivable or a liability to the extent it receives less or
more than its share of the volumes and related revenue. Any amount received in excess of the Company s share is treated as a liability. If the
Company receives less than its entitled share, the underproduction is recorded as a receivable. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company
had a net natural gas imbalance liability of $1.3 million and $0.9 million, respectively.

Make-up provisions and ultimate settlements of volume imbalances are generally governed by agreements between the Company and its partners
with respect to specific properties or, in the absence of such agreements, through negotiation. The value of volumes over- or under-produced can
change based on changes in commodity prices. The Company prefers the entitlements method of accounting for oil and natural gas sales because
it allows for recognition of revenue based on its actual share of jointly owned production, results in better matching of revenue with related
operating expenses, and provides balance sheet recognition of the estimated value of product imbalances.

(o) Capitalized interest: Interest is capitalized on the cost of unevaluated gas and oil properties that are excluded from amortization and
actively being evaluated as well as on work in process relating to gathering systems that are not currently in service.

(p) Capital cost accrual: The Company accrues for exploration and development costs in the period incurred, while payment may occur in a
subsequent period.

(q) Reclassifications: Certain amounts in the financial statements of prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the current period
financial statement presentation.

(r) Recent accounting pronouncements: In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, which amends FASB ASC 820. The amended
guidance clarifies many requirements in U.S. GAAP for measuring fair value and for disclosing information about fair value measurements.
Additionally, the amendments clarify the FASB s intent about the application of existing fair value measurement requirements. The guidance
provided in ASU No. 2011-04 is effective for interim and annual periods beginning after December 15, 2011. The Company does not expect the
adoption of this amendment to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

2. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:

Other comprehensive income (loss) is a term used to define revenues, expenses, gains and losses that under generally accepted accounting
principles impact Shareholders Equity, excluding transactions with shareholders.

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
Net income (loss) $ 453,202 $ 464,459 $ (451,053)
Unrealized gain on derivative instruments* (24,002)
Tax expense on unrealized gain on derivative instruments 8,425
Total comprehensive income (loss) $ 453,202 $ 464,459 $ (466,630)

Effective November 3, 2008, the Company changed its method of accounting for natural gas commodity derivatives to reflect unrealized
gains and losses on commodity derivative contracts in the income statement rather than on the balance sheet (See Note 8). The net gain or
loss in accumulated other comprehensive income at November 3, 2008 remained on the balance sheet and the respective month s gains or
losses were reclassified from accumulated other comprehensive income to earnings as the counterparty settlements affected earnings (January
through December 2009). As a result of the de-designation on November 3, 2008, the Company no longer has any derivative instruments
which qualify for cash flow hedge accounting.

3. ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS:

The Company is required to record the fair value of an asset retirement obligation as a liability in the period in which it incurs a legal obligation
associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets that result from the acquisition, construction, development and/or normal use of the
assets. The following table summarizes the activities for the Company s asset retirement obligations for the years ended:

December 31,
2011 2010

Asset retirement obligations at beginning of period $ 28,052 $17,372
Accretion expense 3,088 2,099
Liabilities incurred 10,878 8,564
Liabilities settled 3) (17)
Revisions of estimated liabilities 37 34
Asset retirement obligations at end of period 42,052 28,052
Less: current asset retirement obligations

Long-term asset retirement obligations $42,052 $ 28,052
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ULTRA PETROLEUM CORP.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4. OIL AND GAS PROPERTIES:

Developed Properties:
Acquisition, equipment, exploration, drilling and environmental costs
Less: Accumulated depletion, depreciation and amortization

Unproven Properties:
Acquisition and exploration costs not being amortized(1),(2)

Net capitalized costs

oil and gas properties

December 31,
2011

$ 5,974,604
(2,322,982)

3,651,622

537,526

$ 4,189,148

December 31,
2010

$ 4,575,222
(1,985,799)

2,589,423

486,247

$ 3,075,670

On a unit basis, DD&A from continuing operations was $1.41, $1.13 and $1.12 per Mcfe for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and

2009, respectively.

(1) In 2010, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired, for $403.8 million in cash, non-producing mineral acres and a small number
of producing gas wells in the Pennsylvania Marcellus Shale. Additionally, the Company purchased additional undeveloped acreage in the
Marcellus Shale for approximately $63.4 million during 2010.

(2) Interest is capitalized on the cost of unevaluated oil and natural gas properties that are excluded from amortization and actively being
evaluated as well as on work in process relating to gathering systems that are not currently in service. For the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010, total interest on outstanding debt was $93.9 million and $70.2 million, respectively, of which, $30.7 million and $21.2
million, respectively, was capitalized on the cost of unevaluated oil and natural gas properties and work in process relating to gathering
systems that are not currently in service.
The Company holds interests in domestic projects in which costs related to these interests are not being depleted pending determination of
existence of estimated proved reserves. The Company will continue to assess and allocate the unproven properties over the next several years as
proved reserves are established and as exploration dictates whether or not future areas will be developed.

Acquisition costs
Exploration costs
Capitalized interest
Sales

Less transfers to proved
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Total
$ 681,370
22,439
48,084
(77,498)
(136,869)

$ 537,526

2011
$ 69,330
3,364
28,474
(5.821)
(44,068)

$ 51,279

2010
$521,149
2,985
19,610
(68,420)
(44,621)

$ 430,703

2009 Prior
$ 36,432 $ 54,459
2,829 13,261
(3,257)
(36,004) (12,176)
$ 55,544
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT:

December 31,

2011 2010
Accumulated Net Book Net Book

Cost Depreciation Value Value
Gathering systems $226,747 $ (7,736) $219,011 $141,817
Computer equipment 2,426 (1,401) 1,025 993
Office equipment 444 (335) 109 124
Leasehold improvements 686 (379) 307 151
Land 22,150 22,150 2,437
Other 7,777 (3,793) 3,984 3,582
Property, Plant and Equipment, Net $260,230 $ (13,644) $ 246,586 $ 149,104

Historically, the Company s condensate production was gathered from its Wyoming well locations by tanker trucks and then shipped to other
locations for injection into crude oil pipelines or other facilities. During 2010, the Company initiated service on its final two, of four total,
central gathering facilities. These facilities are part of the Company s liquids gathering system designed to gather condensate and water from
various leases and wells operated by the Company. The condensate and water are transported to central points in the field where condensate can
be loaded into trucks or delivered into pipelines for delivery to the Company s customers.

Produced water is disposed of or recycled and re-used. At the end of 2011, more than 80% of the Company s operated condensate production in
Wyoming was delivered from the Company s liquids gathering system directly into a pipeline, further reducing truck traffic and improving flow
assurance as well as realized pricing.

In Pennsylvania, the Company and its partners continue constructing gas gathering pipelines and facilities, compression facilities and pipeline
delivery stations to gather production from its newly completed natural gas wells. Construction on these facilities is expected to continue
throughout 2012 allowing the Company to manage its midstream capacity to coincide with increased capacity requirements from its drilling
activities. These facilities are gathering systems and related infrastructure, and their construction is expected to continue until the Company s
properties in Pennsylvania are fully developed. To date, none of the Company s natural gas production in Pennsylvania has required processing,
treating or blending in order to remove natural gas liquids or other impurities and it is anticipated that facilities of this type will not be required
in the future to accommodate the Company s production.

6. LONG-TERM LIABILITIES:

December 31, December 31,
2011 2010
Bank indebtedness $ 343,000 $
Senior notes 1,560,000 1,560,000
Other long-term obligations 67,008 52,575
$ 1,970,008 $ 1,612,575
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Aggregate maturities of debt at December 31, 2011:

Beyond
2014 2015 2016 S years
$ $100,000 $405,000 $1,398,000
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Total
$1,903,000
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Bank indebtedness. The Company (through its subsidiary, Ultra Resources) was a party to a revolving credit facility with a syndicate of banks

led by JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. which was to mature in April 2012 (the 2007 Credit Agreement ). On October 6, 2011, in anticipation of the
upcoming maturity of the 2007 Credit Agreement, the Company, through Ultra Resources (the Borrower ), replaced the 2007 Credit Agreement
in its entirety with a senior unsecured revolving credit facility with JP Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. as administrative agent, and the lenders party
thereto (the 2011 Credit Agreement ) and repaid all amounts outstanding under the 2007 Credit Agreement with proceeds of loans drawn under
the 2011 Credit Agreement.

The 2011 Credit Agreement reflects an increased borrowing capacity as compared to the 2007 Credit Agreement with an initial loan
commitment of $1.0 billion (which may be increased up to $1.25 billion at the request of the Borrower and with the lenders consent), provides
for the issuance of letters of credit of up to $250.0 million in aggregate, and matures in October 2016 (which term may be extended for up to two
successive one-year periods at the Borrower s request and with the lenders consent).

Loans under the 2011 Credit Agreement are unsecured and bear interest, at the Borrower s option, based on (A) a rate per annum equal to the
prime rate or the weighted average fed funds rate on overnight transactions during the preceding business day plus 50 basis points, or (B) a base
Eurodollar rate, substantially equal to the LIBOR rate, in either case plus a margin based on a grid of the Borrower s consolidated leverage ratio
(for Eurodollar borrowings, 175 basis points per annum as of December 31, 2011). Payment of loans under the 2011 Credit Agreement are
guaranteed by Ultra Petroleum Corp. and UP Energy Corporation. The Company also pays commitment fees on the unused commitment under
the facility based on a grid of our consolidated leverage ratio.

The 2011 Credit Agreement contains typical and customary representations, warranties, covenants and events of default. The 2011 Credit
Agreement includes restrictive covenants requiring the Borrower to maintain a consolidated leverage ratio of no greater than three and one half
times to one and, as long as the Company s debt rating is below investment grade, the maintenance of an annual ratio of the net present value of
the Company s oil and gas properties to total funded debt of no less than one and one half times to one. At December 31, 2011, the Company was
in compliance with all of its debt covenants under the 2011 Credit Agreement.

Senior Notes: The Company s Senior Notes rank pari passu with the Company s 2011 Credit Agreement. Payment of the Senior Notes is
guaranteed by Ultra Petroleum Corp. and UP Energy Corporation.

The Senior Notes are pre-payable in whole or in part at any time and are subject to representations, warranties, covenants and events of default
customary for a senior note financing. At December 31, 2011, the Company was in compliance with all of its debt covenants under the Senior
Notes.

Other long-term obligations: These costs primarily relate to the long-term portion of production taxes payable and our asset retirement
obligations.

7. SHARE BASED COMPENSATION:

The Company sponsors a share based compensation plan: the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the 2005 Plan ). The plan is administered by the
Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors (the Committee ). The share based compensation plan is an important component of the total
compensation package offered to the Company s key service providers, and reflects the importance that the Company places on motivating and
rewarding superior results.

The 2005 Plan was adopted by the Company s Board of Directors on January 1, 2005 and approved by the Company s shareholders on April 29,
2005. The purpose of the 2005 Plan is to foster and promote the
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long-term financial success of the Company and to increase shareholder value by attracting, motivating and retaining key employees,
consultants, and outside directors, and providing such participants with a program for obtaining an ownership interest in the Company that links
and aligns their personal interests with those of the Company s shareholders, and thus, enabling such participants to share in the long-term
growth and success of the Company. To accomplish these goals, the 2005 Plan permits the granting of incentive stock options, non-statutory
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock, and other stock-based awards, some of which may require the satisfaction of
performance-based criteria in order to be payable to participants. The Committee determines the terms and conditions of the awards, including,
any vesting requirements and vesting restrictions or forfeitures that may occur. The Committee may grant awards under the 2005 Plan until
December 31, 2014, unless terminated sooner by the Board of Directors.

Valuation and Expense Information

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
Total cost of share-based payment plans $ 21,688 $21,805 $ 18,872
Amounts capitalized in fixed assets $ 7,769 $ 8,861 $ 7,971
Amounts charged against income, before income tax benefit $13,919 $ 12,944 $ 10,901
Amount of related income tax benefit recognized in income $ 4,997 $ 4,595 $ 3,826

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Compensation Plans

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had the following securities issuable pursuant to outstanding award agreements or reserved for issuance
under the Company s previously approved stock incentive plans. Upon exercise, shares issued will be newly issued shares or shares issued from
treasury.

Number of Securities
Remaining Available

Number of for Future Issuance
Securities to Weighted Under Equity
be Issued Average Compensation Plans
Upon Exercise of Exercise Price of (Excluding Securities
Outstanding Outstanding Reflected in the
Plan Category Options Options First Column)
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 1,459 $ 48.29 3,554
Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders n/a n/a n/a
Total 1,459 $ 48.29 3,554
F-16
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Changes in Stock Options and Stock Options Outstanding

The following table summarizes the changes in stock options for the three year period ended December 31, 2011:

Weighted
Average
Number of Exercise Price
Options (US$)
Balance, December 31, 2008 4,213 $ 0.25 to $98.87
Forfeited (43) $51.60 to $78.55
Exercised (666) $ 0.25 to $33.57
Balance, December 31, 2009 3,504 $ 1.49 to $98.87
Forfeited (68) $51.60 to $76.01
Exercised (1,206) $ 1.49 to $45.95
Balance, December 31, 2010 2,230 $ 391 to $98.87
Forfeited (99) $51.60 to $75.18
Exercised (672) $ 3.91 to $33.57
Balance, December 31, 2011 1,459 $16.97 to $98.87
The following tables summarize information about the stock options outstanding at December 31, 2011:
Options Outstanding
Weighted
Average Weighted
Number Remaining Average Aggregate
Range of Exercise Price Outstanding Contractual Life Exercise Price Intrinsic Value
(Years)
$16.97 - $19.18 70 2.37 $ 17.44 $ 853
$25.08 - $55.58 637 3.60 $ 38.69 $ 179
$46.05 - $65.04 179 4.53 $ 56.67 $
$49.05 - $65.94 373 5.31 $ 54.58 $
$51.14 - $98.87 200 6.40 $ 70.51 $
Options Exercisable
Weighted
Average Weighted
Number Remaining Average Aggregate
Range of Exercise Price Outstanding Contractual Life Exercise Price Intrinsic Value
(Years)

$16.97 - $19.18 70 2.37 $ 17.44 $ 853
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$25.08 - $55.58 637 3.60 $ 38.69 $ 179
$46.05 - $65.04 179 4.53 $ 56.67 $
$49.05 - $65.94 373 5.31 $ 54.58 $
$51.14 - $98.87 200 6.40 $ 70.51 $

The aggregate intrinsic value in the preceding tables represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value, based on the Company s closing stock price of
$29.63 on December 30, 2011, which would have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options as of that
date. The total number of in-the-money options exercisable as of December 31, 2011 was 0.1 million options.
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The following table summarizes information about the weighted-average grant-date fair value of share options:

2011 2010 2009
Non-vested share options at beginning of year $30.72 $26.28 $26.18
Non-vested share options at end of year $ $30.72 $26.28
Options vested during the year $30.73 $23.86 $25.07
Options forfeited during the year $25.80 $28.36 $29.57

The fair value of stock options that vested during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $6.4 million, $9.8 million and
$3.9 million, respectively. The total intrinsic value of stock options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was
$21.5 million, $50.7 million and $33.2 million, respectively.

At December 31, 2011, there was no unrecognized compensation cost related to non-vested, employee stock options as all options had fully
vested as of December 31, 2011.

PERFORMANCE SHARE PLANS:

Long Term Incentive Plans. The Company offers a Long Term Incentive Plan ( LTIP ) in order to further align the interests of key employees
with shareholders and to give key employees the opportunity to share in the long-term performance of the Company when specific corporate
financial and operational goals are achieved. Each LTIP covers a performance period of three years. In 2009, 2010 and 2011, the Compensation
Committee (the Committee ) approved an award consisting of performance-based restricted stock units to be awarded to each participant.

For each LTIP award, the Committee establishes performance measures at the beginning of each performance period. Under each LTIP, the
Committee establishes a percentage of base salary for each participant which is multiplied by the participant s base salary to derive a Long Term
Incentive Value as a target value which corresponds to the number of shares of the Company s common stock the participant is eligible to receive
if the target level for all performance measures is met. In addition, each participant is assigned threshold and maximum award levels in the event

that actual performance is below or above target levels. For the 2009, 2010 and 2011 LTIP awards, the Committee established the following
performance measures: return on equity, reserve replacement ratio, and production growth.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company recognized $10.7 million in pre-tax compensation expense related to the 2009, 2010 and
2011 LTIP awards of restricted stock units. For the year ended December 31, 2010, the Company recognized $8.6 million in pre-tax
compensation expense related to the 2008, 2009 and 2010 LTIP awards of restricted stock units. For the year ended December 31, 2009, the
Company recognized $5.8 million in pre-tax compensation expense related to the 2007, 2008 and 2009 LTIP awards of restricted stock units.
The amounts recognized during the year ended December 31, 2011 assumes that maximum performance objectives are attained. If the Company
ultimately attains these performance objectives, the associated total compensation, estimated at December 31, 2011, for each of the three year
performance periods is expected to be approximately $24.1 million, $12.0 million, and $12.1 million related to the 2009, 2010 and 2011 LTIP
awards of restricted stock units, respectively. The 2008 LTIP Common Stock Award was paid in shares of the Company s stock to employees
during the first quarter of 2011 and totaled $4.3 million (41,443 net shares).
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8. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS:

Objectives and Strategy: The Company s major market risk exposure is in the pricing applicable to its natural gas and oil production. Realized
pricing is currently driven primarily by the prevailing price for the Company s Wyoming natural gas production. Historically, prices received for
natural gas production have been volatile and unpredictable. Pricing volatility is expected to continue.

The Company relies on various types of derivative instruments to manage its exposure to commodity price risk and to provide a level of
certainty in the Company s forward cash flows supporting the Company s capital investment program.

The Company s hedging policy limits the amounts of resources hedged to not more than 50% of its forecast production without Board approval.
As a result of its hedging activities, the Company may realize prices that are less than or greater than the spot prices that it would have received
otherwise. The Company s board approved hedging greater than 50% of the Company s forecast 2011 production.

Commodity Derivative Contracts: During the first quarter of 2009, the Company converted its physical, fixed price, forward natural gas sales
to physical, indexed natural gas sales combined with financial swaps whereby the Company receives the fixed price and pays the variable price.
This change provided operational flexibility to curtail gas production in the event of declines in natural gas prices. The contracts were converted
at no cost to the Company and the conversion of these contracts to derivative instruments was effective upon entering into these transactions in
March 2009, with settlements for production months through December 2010. The natural gas reference prices of these commodity derivative
contracts are typically referenced to natural gas index prices as published by independent third parties or natural gas futures settlement prices as
traded on the NYMEX.

From time to time, the Company also utilizes fixed price forward gas sales to manage its commodity price exposure. These fixed price forward
gas sales are considered normal sales in the ordinary course of business and outside the scope of FASB ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging.

Fair Value of Commodity Derivatives: FASB ASC 815 requires that all derivatives be recognized on the balance sheet as either an asset or
liability and be measured at fair value. Changes in the derivative s fair value are recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge
accounting criteria are met. The Company does not apply hedge accounting to any of its derivative instruments. The application of hedge
accounting was discontinued by the Company for periods beginning on or after November 3, 2008.

Derivative contracts that do not qualify for hedge accounting treatment are recorded as derivative assets and liabilities at fair value on the
balance sheet and the associated unrealized gains and losses are recorded as current expense or income in the income statement. Unrealized
gains or losses on commodity derivatives represent the non-cash change in the fair value of these derivative instruments and do not impact
operating cash flows on the cash flow statement.

At December 31, 2011, the Company had the following open commodity derivative contracts to manage price risk on a portion of its natural gas
production whereby the Company receives the fixed price and pays the variable price. See Note 9 for the detail of the asset and liability values of
the following derivatives. The Board has approved our hedging greater than 50% of our forecast 2012 production.

Commodity Remaining
Reference Contract Volume - Average Fair Value -
Type Price Period MMBTU/Day Price/MMBTU December 31, 2011
Asset
Swap NYMEX April - October 2012 90,000 $ 5.00 $ 34,310
Swap NYMEX Calendar 2012 300,000 $ 5.03 $ 196,075
F-19
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Subsequent to December 31, 2011 and through February 10, 2012, the Company has entered into the following open commodity derivative
contracts to manage price risk on a portion of its natural gas production whereby the Company receives the fixed price and pays the variable
price:

Commodity Remaining

Reference Contract Volume - Average
Type Price Period MMBTU/Day Price/MMBTU
Swap NYMEX April - December 2012 200,000 $ 3.02

The following table summarizes the pre-tax realized and unrealized gains and losses the Company recognized related to its natural gas derivative
instruments in the Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 (refer to Note 2 for details of
unrealized gains or losses included in accumulated other comprehensive income in the Consolidated Balance Sheets):

For the Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Natural Gas Commodity Derivatives:
Realized gain on commodity derivatives(1) $ 213,349 $116,827 $ 239,366
Unrealized gain (loss) on commodity derivatives(1) 100,383 208,625 (92,849)
Total gain on commodity derivatives $313,732 $ 325,452 $ 146,517

(1) Included in gain on commodity derivatives in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.
9. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS:

As required by the Fair Value Measurements and Disclosure Topic of the FASB Accounting Standards Codification, we define fair value as the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date and establishes a three level hierarchy for measuring fair value. Fair value measurements are classified and disclosed in one of
the following categories:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets and liabilities that we have the ability to access at the measurement
date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are either directly or indirectly observable for the asset or liability,
including quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive
markets, inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability, and inputs that are derived from observable market data by
correlation or other means. Instruments categorized in Level 2 include non-exchange traded derivatives such as over-the-counter forwards and
swaps.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability, including situations where there is little, if any, market activity for the asset or liability.

The valuation assumptions utilized to measure the fair value of the Company s commodity derivatives were observable inputs based on market
data obtained from independent sources and are considered Level 2 inputs (quoted prices for similar assets, liabilities (adjusted) and
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The following table presents for each hierarchy level our assets and liabilities, including both current and non-current portions, measured at fair
value on a recurring basis, as of December 31, 2011. The company has no derivative instruments which qualify for cash flow hedge accounting.

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets:
Current derivative asset $ $ 230,385 $ $ 230,385
In consideration of counterparty credit risk, the Company assessed the possibility of whether each counterparty to the derivative would default
by failing to make any contractually required payments as scheduled in the derivative instrument in determining the fair value. Additionally, the
Company considers that it is of substantial credit quality and has the financial resources and willingness to meet its potential repayment
obligations associated with the derivative transactions.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value of financial instruments is the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged currently between willing parties.
The carrying amounts reported in the consolidated balance sheet for cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, and accounts payable
approximate fair value due to the immediate or short-term maturity of these financial instruments. The carrying amount of floating-rate debt
approximates fair value because the interest rates are variable and reflective of market rates. We use available market data and valuation
methodologies to estimate the fair value of our fixed rate debt. This disclosure is presented in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 825, Financial
Instruments, and does not impact our financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010

Carrying Estimated Carrying Estimated

Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Long-Term Debt:
5.45% Notes due 2015, issued 2008 $ 100,000 $ 111,475 $ 100,000 $ 108,572
7.31% Notes due 2016, issued 2009 62,000 74,817 62,000 72,153
4.98% Notes due 2017, issued 2010 116,000 128,570 116,000 119,385
5.92% Notes due 2018, issued 2008 200,000 231,091 200,000 212,660
7.77% Notes due 2019, issued 2009 173,000 219,552 173,000 203,051
5.50% Notes due 2020, issued 2010 207,000 229,423 207,000 206,233
4.51% Notes due 2020, issued 2010 315,000 318,925 315,000 284,207
5.60% Notes due 2022, issued 2010 87,000 94,165 87,000 84,818
4.66% Notes due 2022, issued 2010 35,000 34,631 35,000 30,989
5.85% Notes due 2025, issued 2010 90,000 99,022 90,000 87,211
4.91% Notes due 2025, issued 2010 175,000 173,835 175,000 152,064
Credit Facility 343,000 343,000

$ 1,903,000 $ 2,058,506 $ 1,560,000 $ 1,561,343
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10. INCOME TAXES:

The consolidated income tax provision is comprised of the following:

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
Current $ 6464 $ 4,763 $ 8,830
Current tax benefit on equity compensation 6,212 17,522 14,213
Total current tax 12,676 22,285 23,043
Deferred 244,994 236,330 (268,179)
Total income tax provision (benefit) $257,670  $258,615 $ (245,136)

The income tax provision (benefit) for continuing operations differs from the amount that would be computed by applying the U.S. federal
income tax rate of 35% to pretax income as a result of the following:

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
Income tax provision (benefit) computed at the U.S. statutory rate $ 248,805 $ 253,076 $ (243,666)
State income tax provision (benefit) net of federal benefit 6,329 3,608 (698)
Canadian net operating loss valuation allowance (677)
Tax effect of rate change 4,228 1,939
Other, net (1,692) 669 (772)

$ 257,670 $ 258,615 $(245,136)

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to significant components of the Company s deferred tax assets and liabilities for
continuing operations are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010

Deferred tax assets current:
Derivative instruments, net $ $ 255
Incentive compensation/other, net 9,329 4,627
Net deferred tax assets current $ 9,329 $ 4,882
Deferred tax liabilities current:
Derivative instruments, net $ 82,709 $ 47,567
Net deferred tax liabilities current $ 82,709 $ 47,567
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Net deferred tax liability —current

Deferred tax assets non-current:
U.S. federal tax credit carryforwards
Capital loss carryforwards
Derivative instruments, net
Incentive compensation/other, net

Valuation allowance Foreign Tax Credit (FTC)
Valuation allowance (Capital loss carryforwards)

Net deferred tax assets non-current
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$ 73,380
13,280
1,929

13,030
28,239
(1,692)
(1,929)

$ 24,618

$ 42,685

13,714

1,161
14,745

29,620
(1,692)

$ 27,928
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Year Ended December 31,
2011 2010
Deferred tax liabilities non-current:
Property and equipment 659,040 448,298
Other 587 341
Net non-current tax liabilities $ 659,627 $ 448,639
Net non-current tax liability $ 635,009 $420,711

In assessing the realizability of the deferred tax assets, management considers whether it is more likely than not that some or all of the deferred
tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income
during the periods in which the temporary differences become deductible. Among other items, management considers the scheduled reversal of
deferred tax liabilities, projected future taxable income and available tax planning strategies.

The Company did not have any unrecognized tax benefits and there was no effect on our financial condition or results of operations as a result of
implementing the standard related to accounting for uncertain tax positions. The amount of unrecognized tax benefits did not change as of
December 31, 2011.

It is expected that the amount of unrecognized tax benefits may change in the next twelve months; however Ultra does not expect the change to
have a significant impact on the results of operations or the financial position of the Company. The Company currently has no unrecognized tax
benefits that if recognized would affect the effective tax rate.

Estimated interest and penalties related to potential underpayment on any unrecognized tax benefits are classified as a component of tax expense
in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. The Company has not recorded any interest or penalties associated with unrecognized tax benefits.

The Company files a consolidated federal income tax return in the United States federal jurisdiction and various combined, consolidated,
unitary, and separate filings in several states, and international jurisdictions. With certain exceptions, the Company is no longer subject to
U.S. federal, state and local, or non-U.S. income tax examinations by tax authorities for years before 2008.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had approximately $11.6 million of U.S. federal alternative minimum tax (AMT) credits available to
offset regular U.S. federal income taxes. These AMT credits do not expire and can be carried forward indefinitely. In addition, as of
December 31, 2011, the Company has $1.7 million of foreign tax credit carryforwards, none of which expire prior to 2017. However, with the
2007 sale of Sino American Energy, the Company no longer has foreign source income for which to utilize its foreign tax credit carryforwards.
Therefore, a valuation allowance has been placed on the remaining foreign tax credit carryforwards.

The Company had an unutilized capital loss carryforward of approximately $5.4 million as of December 31, 201 1. The majority of this
carryforward expires in 2013. Due to the unpredictability of future capital gains that would allow for the utilization of this carryforward, a
valuation allowance has be placed on the full amount of the carryforward.

The Company had Canadian net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $2.7 million as of December 31, 2009. The unexpired portion of
the Canadian net operating loss carryforward was fully utilized in 2010, and thus the valuation allowance at December 31, 2009 has been
removed and no deferred tax asset related to the Canadian net operating loss exists as of December 31, 2010.
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The undistributed earnings of the Company s U.S. subsidiaries are considered to be indefinitely invested outside of Canada. Accordingly, no
provision for Canadian income taxes and/or withholding taxes has been provided thereon.

The Company periodically uses derivative instruments designated as cash flow hedges for tax purposes as a method of managing its exposure to
commodity price fluctuations. To the extent these hedges are effective, changes in the fair value of these derivative instruments are recorded in
Other Comprehensive Income, net of income tax. To the extent these hedges are ineffective, they are marked to market with gains and losses
recorded in the statement of operations. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Company also recorded a total deferred tax liability of

$82.7 million and $46.2 million, respectively, attributable to the unrealized gains and losses recorded in the statement of operations.

11. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS:

The Company sponsors a qualified, tax-deferred savings plan in accordance with provisions of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code for
its employees. Employees may defer up to 100% of their compensation, subject to certain limitations. The Company matches 100% of the
employee s contribution up to 5% of compensation, as defined by the plan, along with an employer discretionary contribution of 8%. The
expense associated with the Company s contribution was $1.4 million, $1.2 million and $1.1 million for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively.

12. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES:

Transportation contract. The Company is an anchor shipper on REX securing pipeline infrastructure providing sufficient capacity to transport
a portion of its natural gas production away from southwest Wyoming and to provide for reasonable basis differentials for its natural gas in the
future. REX begins at the Opal Processing Plant in southwest Wyoming and traverses Wyoming and several other states to an ultimate terminus
in eastern Ohio. The Company s commitment involves a capacity of 200 MMMBtu per day of natural gas for a term of 10-years commencing in
November 2009, and the Company is obligated to pay REX certain demand charges related to its rights to hold this firm transportation capacity
as an anchor shipper.

Subsequently, the Company entered into agreements to secure an additional capacity of 50 MMMBtu per day on the REX pipeline system,
beginning in January 2012 through December 2018. This additional capacity will provide the Company with the ability to move additional
volumes from its producing wells in Wyoming to markets in the eastern U.S.

The Company currently projects that demand charges related to the remaining term of the contract will total approximately $776.3 million.

Drilling contracts. As of December 31, 2011, the Company had committed to drilling obligations with certain rig contractors totaling
$60.5 million ($45.5 million due in 2012, $15.0 million due in 2013). The commitments expire in 2013 and were entered into to fulfill the
Company s drilling program initiatives in Wyoming.

Office space lease. The Company s maintains office space in Colorado, Texas, Wyoming and Pennsylvania with total remaining commitments
for office leases of $2.5 million at December 31, 2011 ($1.0 million in 2012, $1.5 million in 2013 to 2015).

During the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the Company recognized expense associated with its office leases in the amount of
$0.9 million, $0.8 million, and $0.9 million, respectively.
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Other. The Company is currently involved in various routine disputes and allegations incidental to its business operations. While it is not
possible to determine the ultimate disposition of these matters, management, after consultation with legal counsel, is of the opinion that the final
resolution of all such currently pending or threatened litigation is not likely to have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position, results of operations or cash flows of the Company.

13. CONCENTRATION OF CREDIT RISK:

The Company s financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of trade receivables and commodity
derivative contracts associated with the Company s hedging program. The Company s revenues related to natural gas sales are derived principally
from a diverse group of companies, including major energy companies, natural gas utilities, oil refiners, pipeline companies, local distribution
companies, financial institutions and end-users in various industries.

Concentrations of credit risk with respect to receivables is limited due to the large number of customers and their dispersion across geographic
areas. Commodity-based contracts may expose the Company to the credit risk of nonperformance by the counterparty to these contracts. This
credit exposure to the Company is diversified primarily among as many as ten major investment grade institutions and will only be present if the
reference price of natural gas established in those contracts is less than the prevailing market price of natural gas, from time to time.

The Company maintains credit policies intended to monitor and mitigate the risk of uncollectible accounts receivable related to the sale of
natural gas, condensate as well as its commodity derivative positions. The Company performs a credit analysis of each of its customers and
counterparties prior to making any sales to new customers or extending additional credit to existing customers. Based upon this credit analysis,
the Company may require a standby letter of credit or a financial guarantee. The Company did not have any outstanding, uncollectible accounts
for its natural gas or condensate sales, nor derivative settlements sales at December 31, 2011.

A significant counterparty is defined as one that individually accounts for 10% or more of the Company s total revenues during the year. In 2011,
the Company had no single customer that represented 10% or more of its total revenues.

14. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS:

FASB ASC Topic 855, Subsequent Events ( FASB ASC 855 ), sets forth principles and requirements to be applied to the accounting for and
disclosure of subsequent events. FASB ASC 855 sets forth the period after the balance sheet date during which management shall evaluate

events or transactions that may occur for potential recognition or disclosure in the financial statements, the circumstances under which events or
transactions occurring after the balance sheet date shall be recognized in the financial statements and the required disclosures about events or
transactions that occurred after the balance sheet date. The FASB issued ASU No. 2010-09, Subsequent Events (FASB ASC 855), Amendments
to Certain Recognition and Disclosure Requirements, on February 24, 2010, in an effort to remove some contradictions between the

requirements of U.S. GAAP and the SEC s filing rules. The amendments remove the requirement that public companies disclose the date through
which their financial statements are evaluated for subsequent events in both issued and revised financial statements. The Company has evaluated
the period subsequent to December 31, 2011 for events that did not exist at the balance sheet date but arose after that date and determined that no
subsequent events arose that should be disclosed in order to keep the financial statements from being misleading.
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15. SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION RELATING TO EVENT SUBSEQUENT TO FEBRUARY 17, 2012 (Unaudited):

The Company has evaluated the period subsequent to February 17, 2012 (the date of the Auditor s Report) for events that did not exist but arose
after that date and determined that the subsequent event described below should be disclosed in order to prevent the financial statements from
being misleading.

During December 2012, the Company entered into a purchase and sale agreement for the sale of its Wyoming liquids gathering system ( LGS ) to
Pinedale Corridor, LP for $225.0 million, and intends to concurrently enter into a Lease Agreement under a long-term triple net lease. The Lease
Agreement provides for an initial term of 15 years and potential successive renewal terms of 5 years or 75% of the then remaining useful life of
the LGS at the sole discretion of the Company. Annual rent for the initial term under the Lease Agreement will be a minimum of $20 million (as
adjusted annually for changes based on the consumer price index) and a maximum of $27.5 million, with the exact amount being determined
depending on changes in the product volume handled by the LGS. During the initial fifteen year term, Pinedale Corridor, LP will receive fixed
monthly rental payments of $1,666,667 and variable quarterly rental payments based on the volume of liquid hydrocarbons and water that

flowed through the LGS in the prior quarter. The Company s sale leaseback transaction will be treated as a normal leaseback and qualifies for
sales recognition under the provisions of FASB ASC Topic 840, Leases. The Lease will be classified as an operating lease.

16. SUMMARIZED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDITED):

2011
1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Total
Revenues from continuing operations $ 257,290 $ 280,567 $ 293,141 $ 270,798 $1,101,796
Gain on commodity derivatives 15,635 47,606 114,166 136,325 313,732
Expenses from continuing operations 145,666 151,365 160,543 184,458 642,032
Interest expense 14,590 15,590 15,902 17,074 63,156
Other income (expense), net 20 4) 3) 519 532
Income before income tax provision 112,689 161,214 230,859 206,110 710,872
Income tax provision 43,969 57,709 81,713 74,279 257,670
Net income $ 68,720 $ 103,505 $ 149,146 $ 131,831 $ 453,202
Net income per common share  basic $ 045 $ 0.68 $ 0.98 $ 0.86 $ 297
Net income per common share fully diluted $ 0.44 $ 0.67 $ 0.97 $ 0.86 $ 2.94
2010
1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter Total
Revenues from continuing operations $273,124 $ 228,388 $ 240,374 $ 237,500 $ 979,386
Gain (loss) on commodity derivatives 181,351 14,566 150,186 (20,651) 325,452
Expenses from continuing operations 124,260 125,999 128,489 144,342 523,090
Interest expense 11,718 11,437 11,382 14,495 49,032
Litigation expense 9,902 9,902
Other (expense) income , net 151 22 12 75 260
Income before income tax provision 318,648 95,638 250,701 58,087 723,074
Income tax provision 116,272 34,145 88,059 20,139 258,615
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Net income $ 202,376 $ 61,493 $ 162,642
Net income per common share  basic $ 133 $ 0.40 $ 1.07
Net income per common share  fully diluted $ 131 $ 0.40 $ 1.05
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17. DISCLOSURE ABOUT OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES (UNAUDITED):

The following information about the Company s oil and natural gas producing activities is presented in accordance with FASB ASC Topic 932,
Oil and Gas Reserve Estimation and Disclosures:

A. OILAND GAS RESERVES:

On January 6, 2010, the FASB issued an ASU updating oil and gas reserve estimation and disclosure requirements. The ASU amends FASB
ASC 932 to align the reserve calculation and disclosure requirements with the requirements in SEC Release No. 33-8995. SEC Release

No. 33-8995, amends oil and gas reporting requirements under Rule 4-10 of Regulation S-X and Industry Guide 2 in Regulation S-K revising oil
and gas reserves estimation and disclosure requirements. The rules include changes to pricing used to estimate reserves, the ability to include
non-traditional resources in reserves, the use of new technology for determining reserves and permitting disclosure of probable and possible
reserves. The primary objectives of the revisions are to increase the transparency and information value of reserve disclosures and improve
comparability among oil and gas companies.

Our policies and practices regarding internal controls over the recording of reserves is structured to objectively and accurately estimate our oil
and gas reserves quantities and present values in compliance with the SEC s regulations and GAAP. The Vice President Reservoir
Engineering & Development is primarily responsible for overseeing the preparation of the Company s reserve estimates by our independent
engineers, Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. The Vice President Reservoir Engineering & Development has a Bachelor and Master of
Science degree in Petroleum Engineering and is a licensed Professional Engineer with over 17 years of experience. The Company s internal
controls over reserve estimates include reconciliation and review controls, including an independent internal review of assumptions used in the
estimation.

All of the information regarding reserves in this annual report is derived from the report of Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. The report of
Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. is included as an Exhibit to this annual report. The principal engineer at Netherland, Sewell & Associates,
Inc. responsible for preparing our reserve estimates has a Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical Engineering and is a licensed Professional
Engineer with over 25 years of experience, including significant experience throughout the Rocky Mountain basins.

The Company s proved undeveloped reserves are limited to economic locations that are scheduled in accordance with the Company s current
planning and budgeting process. The inventory of bookable locations available to the Company is substantially larger than the amount ultimately
included in the Company s year-end reserves. From time to time, the Company may adjust the inventory and schedule of its proved undeveloped
locations in response to changes in capital budget, economics, new opportunities in the portfolio or resource availability. The Company has not
scheduled any proved undeveloped reserves beyond five years nor does it have any proved undeveloped locations that have been part of its
inventory of proved undeveloped locations for over five years.

The determination of oil and natural gas reserves is complex and highly interpretive. Assumptions used to estimate reserve information may
significantly increase or decrease such reserves in future periods. The estimates of reserves are subject to continuing changes and, therefore, an
accurate determination of reserves may not be possible for many years because of the time needed for development, drilling, testing, and studies
of reservoirs.

In estimating proved reserves and future revenue as of December 31, 2011, the Company s independent reserve engineer, Netherland, Sewell &
Associates, Inc., used technical and economic data including, but not
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limited to, well logs, geologic maps, seismic data, well test data, production data, historical price and cost information and property ownership
interests. The reserves were estimated using deterministic methods; these estimates were prepared in accordance with generally accepted
petroleum engineering and evaluation principles. Standard engineering and geoscience methods, such as performance analysis, volumetric
analysis and analogy, that were considered to be appropriate and necessary to establish reserve quantities and reserve categorization that
conform to SEC definitions and guidelines, were also used. In evaluating the information at their disposal, Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc.
excluded from their consideration all matters as to which the controlling interpretation may be legal or accounting, rather than engineering and
geoscience. As in all aspects of oil and natural gas evaluation, there are uncertainties inherent in the interpretation of engineering and geoscience
data; therefore, Netherland, Sewell & Associates, Inc. s conclusions necessarily represent only informed professional judgment.

The following unaudited tables as of December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 are based upon estimates prepared by Netherland, Sewell &
Associates, Inc. in reports dated February 1, 2012, January 31, 2011, and January 27, 2010, respectively. These are estimated quantities of
proved oil and natural gas reserves for the Company and the changes in total proved reserves as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009. All such
reserves are located in the Green River Basin in Wyoming and the Appalachian Basin of Pennsylvania.

Since January 1, 2011, no crude oil or natural gas reserve information has been filed with, or included in any report to, any federal authority or
agency other than the SEC and the Energy Information Administration ( EIA ) of the U.S. Department of Energy. We file Form 23, including
reserve and other information, with the EIA.

B. ANALYSES OF CHANGES IN PROVEN RESERVES:

United States
il Natural Gas
(MBDbls) (MMcf)

Reserves, December 31, 2008 27,007 3,355,788
Extensions, discoveries and additions 5,902 758,659
Production (1,320) (172,189)
Revisions (2,404) (205,657)
Reserves, December 31, 2009 29,185 3,736,601
Extensions, discoveries and additions 7,369 1,055,047
Production (1,334) (205,613)
Revisions (3,536) (385,880)
Reserves, December 31, 2010 31,684 4,200,155
Extensions, discoveries and additions 4,592 1,112,147
Production (1,408) (236,832)
Revisions (1,787) (296,916)
Reserves, December 31, 2011 33,081 4,778,554
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United States
0Oil Natural Gas
(MBbls) (MMcf)

Proved:
Developed 11,462 1,412,562
Undeveloped 15,546 1,943,225
Total Proved 2008 27,007 3,355,788
Developed 11,627 1,541,813
Undeveloped 17,558 2,194,788
Total Proved 2009 29,185 3,736,601
Developed 11,013 1,678,697
Undeveloped 20,671 2,521,458
Total Proved 2010 31,684 4,200,155
Developed 11,794 1,973,391
Undeveloped 21,287 2,805,163
Total Proved 2011 33,081 4,778,554

During 2011, substantially all of our extensions and discoveries in the proved developed category were attributable to wells drilled in 2011, and
substantially all of our extensions and discoveries in the proved undeveloped category were attributable to our ongoing drilling activities and its
associated effect on our proved undeveloped reserves estimates.

C. STANDARDIZED MEASURE:

The following table sets forth a standardized measure of the estimated discounted future net cash flows attributable to the Company s proved
natural gas reserves. Natural gas prices have fluctuated widely in recent years. The calculated weighted average sales prices utilized for the
purposes of estimating the Company s proved reserves and future net revenues at December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $4.035, $4.05 and
$3.04 per Mcf, respectively, for natural gas and $88.19, $68.93 and $52.18 per barrel, respectively, for condensate, based upon the average of
the price in effect on the first day of the month for the preceding twelve month period.

The future production and development costs represent the estimated future expenditures to be incurred in developing and producing the proved
reserves, assuming continuation of existing economic conditions. Future income tax expense was computed by applying statutory income tax
rates to the difference between pretax net cash flows relating to the Company s proved reserves and the tax basis of proved properties and
available operating loss carryovers.

As of December 31,
2011 2010 2009
Future cash inflows $22,196,913 $ 19,186,072 $12,870,816
Future production costs (6,113,282) (5,253,509) (3,916,222)
Future development costs (4,294,375) (3,052,843) (2,249,993)
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Future income taxes (3,340,516) (3,198,413)

Future net cash flows 8,448,740 7,681,307

Discount at 10% (4,652,684) (4,155,739)

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows $ 3,796,056 $ 3,525,568
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The estimate of future income taxes is based on the future net cash flows from proved reserves adjusted for the tax basis of the oil and gas
properties but without consideration of general and administrative and interest expenses.

D. SUMMARY OF CHANGES IN THE STANDARDIZED MEASURE OF DISCOUNTED FUTURE NET CASH FLOWS:

December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Standardized measure, beginning $ 3,525,568 $ 2,026,700 $ 3,017,686
Net revisions of previous quantity estimates (446,677) (592,919) (216,946)
Extensions, discoveries and other changes 1,654,793 1,601,154 782,763
Changes in future development costs (741,658) (606,449) (103,056)
Sales of oil and gas, net of production costs (896,434) (787,409) (513,958)
Net change in prices and production costs 108,108 1,501,002 (1,772,644)
Development costs incurred during the period that reduce future development costs 464,880 404,402 395,092
Accretion of discount 499,358 288,713 444 387
Net changes in production rates and other (338,982) 297,957 (572,380)
Net change in income taxes (32,900) (607,583) 565,756
Aggregate changes 270,488 1,498,868 (990,986)
Standardized measure, ending $ 3,796,056 $ 3,525,568 $ 2,026,700

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of proved reserves and projected future rates of production and timing of

development expenditures, including many factors beyond the control of the Company. The reserve data and standardized measures set forth
herein represent only estimates. Reserve engineering is a subjective process of estimating underground accumulations of oil and natural gas that
cannot be measured in an exact way and the accuracy of any reserve estimate is a function of the quality of available data and of engineering and

geological interpretation and judgment. As a result, estimates of different engineers often vary. In addition, results of drilling, testing and

production subsequent to the date of an estimate may justify revision of such estimates. Accordingly, reserve estimates are often different from
the quantities of oil and natural gas that are ultimately recovered. Further, the estimated future net revenues from proved reserves and the present

value thereof are based upon certain assumptions, including geologic success, prices, future production levels and costs that may not prove

correct over time. Predictions of future production levels are subject to great uncertainty, and the meaningfulness of such estimates is highly

dependent upon the accuracy of the assumptions upon which they are based. Historically, oil and natural gas prices have fluctuated widely.

E. COSTS INCURRED IN OIL AND GAS EXPLORATION AND DEVELOPMENT ACTIVITIES:

Years Ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009
United States
Acquisition costs unproved properties, net $ 91,983 $ 472,339 $ 33,176
Exploration 48,998 249,029 102,217
Development 1,372,805 855,110 605,958
Total $1,513,786 $1,576,478 $ 741,351
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F. RESULTS OF OPERATIONS FOR OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES:

United States
Oil and gas revenue
Production expenses

Depletion and depreciation
Write-down of proved oil and gas properties

Income taxes

Total

G. CAPITALIZED COSTS RELATING TO OIL AND GAS PRODUCING ACTIVITIES:

Developed Properties:

Acquisition, equipment, exploration, drilling and environmental costs

Less: accumulated depletion, depreciation and amortization

Unproven Properties:

Acquisition and exploration costs not being amortized
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Years Ended December 31,

2010 2009
$ 979,386 $ 666,762
(191,978) (152,804)
(241,796) (201,826)
(1,037,000)
(193,692) 254,429
$ 351,920 $ (470,439)

December 31,

2011 2010
$ 5,974,604 $ 4,575,222
(2,322,982) (1,985,799)
3,651,622 2,589,423
537,526 486,247
$ 4,189,148 $ 3,075,670
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For the Three Months For the Nine Months

Ended September 30, Ended September 30,

2012 2011 2012 2011

(Unaudited)
(Amounts in thousands, except per share data)
Revenues:
Natural gas sales $ 169,594 $262,147 $ 501,470 $ 743,898
Oil sales 26,781 30,994 91,319 87,101
Total operating revenues 196,375 293,141 592,789 830,999
Expenses:
Lease operating expenses 16,741 12,381 45,982 35,853
Production taxes 15,047 25,676 46,634 73,796
Gathering fees 10,274 14,445 46,591 41,363
Transportation charges 21,055 16,061 63,477 48,492
Depletion, depreciation and amortization 86,645 85,795 314,115 238,773
Ceiling test and other impairments 606,827 2,475,963
General and administrative 6,741 6,185 19,308 19,298
Total operating expenses 763,330 160,543 3,012,070 457,575
Operating (loss) income (566,955) 132,598 (2,419,281) 373,424
Other income (expense), net:
Interest expense (25,369) (15,902) (62,414) (46,082)
(Loss) gain on commodity derivatives (9,896) 114,166 77,100 177,407
Rig cancellation fees 291 (9,220)
Other (expense) income, net (42) 3) @27 14
Total other (expense) income, net (35,016) 98,261 5,439 131,339
(Loss) income before income tax provision (benefit) (601,971) 230,859 (2,413,842) 504,763
Income tax provision (benefit) 175 81,713 (708,977) 183,392
Net (loss) income $ (602,146) $ 149,146 $ (1,704,865) $ 321,371
Net (loss) income per common share basic $ (399 $ 098 $ (11.16) $ 210
Net (loss) income per common share fully diluted $ (399 $ 097 $ (11.16) $ 208
Weighted average common shares outstanding basic 152,929 152,817 152,817 152,772
Weighted average common shares outstanding fully diluted 152,929 154,280 152,817 154,418
See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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September 30, December 31,
2012 2011
(Unaudited)

(Amounts in thousands of
U.S. dollars, except share

data)
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 59,194 $ 11,307
Restricted cash 121 121
Oil and gas revenue receivable 62,237 88,243
Joint interest billing and other receivables 21,816 82,370
Derivative assets 52,716 230,385
Prepaid drilling costs and other current assets 6,406 7,494
Total current assets 202,490 419,920
Oil and gas properties, net, using the full cost method of accounting:
Proven 2,095,823 3,651,622
Unproven properties not being amortized 537,526
Property, plant and equipment 271,284 246,586
Deferred tax assets 11,586
Deferred financing costs and other 12,445 14,051
Total assets $2,593,628 $ 4,869,705
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 143,751 $ 295873
Production taxes payable 60,084 62,117
Deferred tax liabilities 11,586 73,380
Interest payable 8,495 30,306
Derivative liabilities 5,470
Capital cost accrual 239,671 209,303
Total current liabilities 469,057 670,979
Long-term debt 2,160,000 1,903,000
Deferred tax liabilities 635,009
Other long-term obligations 74,174 67,008
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders equity:
Common stock no par value; authorized unlimited; issued and outstanding 152,928,937 and 152,476,564 at
September 30, 2012 and December 31, 2011, respectively 470,081 463,221
Treasury stock 33) (14,951)
Retained earnings (579,651) 1,145,439
Total shareholders equity (109,603) 1,593,709

Total liabilities and shareholders equity $ 2,593,628
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